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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD R E C E " VE D
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

M
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION AT 2 4 2013
HEALTH FACILITIES &

This Section must be completed for all projects. SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name:  Kindred Hospital Springfield  to be re-named Vibra Hospital of Springfield
Street Address: 701 North Walnut Street

City and Zip Code: Springfield, [L 62702

| County:  Sangamon Health Service Area 3 _Health Planning Area: E-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Vibra Hospital of Springfield, LLC

Address: 701 North Walnut Street Springfield, IL 62702

Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Brad Hollinger

CEOQ Address: 4550 Lena Drive Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Telephone Number: 717/591-5700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

| Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental _
X Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited I|ab|||ty companies must prowde an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period)
Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact

[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: none

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name:  Kindred Hospital Springfield  to be re-named Vibra Hospital of Springfield
Street Address: 701 North Walnut Street

City and Zip Code: Springfield, IL 62702

County.  Sangamon Health Service Area 3 Health Planning Area; E-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Vibra Healthcare, LLC

Address: 4550 Lena Drive " Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Brad Hollinger .

CEOQO Address: 4550 Lena Drive_Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Telephone Number: 717/591-5700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

] Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
L] For-profit Corporation J Governmental
X Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101 '

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact

[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permlt]
Name: none

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification
Facility Name: Kindred Hospital Springfield  to be re-named Vibra Hospital of Springfield
Street Address: 701 North Walnut Street

City and Zip Code: Springfield, IL 62702
County:  Sangamon Health Service Area 3 Health Planning Area: E-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Vibra Healthcare i, LLC

Address: 4550 Lena Drive Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Brad Hollinger

CEO Address: 4550 Lena Drive Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Telephone Number: 717/591-56700

Type of'0wnership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

[0  Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
O] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
X Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact

[Person who is also authorized to discuss the appllcatxon for permit]
Name: none

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Kindred Hospital Springfield  to be re-named Vibra Hospital of Springfield

Street Address: 701 North Walnut Street

City and Zip Code: Springfield, IL 62702

County:  Sangamon Health Service Area 3 Health Planning Area:  E-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Hollinger Holdings, LLC >

Address: 4550 Lena Drive Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055

Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Brad Hollinger

CEOQ Address: 4550 Lena Drive Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055

Telephone Number: 717/591-5700

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

] Non-profit Corporation L] Partnership
[] For-profit Corporation [] Governmental
X Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship L] Other

.

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address: 675 North Court Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number: 847/776-7101

E-mail Address: jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number: 847/776-7004

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: none
Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:




NOTE ON HOLLINGER HOLDING COMPANY, LLC

Hollinger Holding Company, LL.C (“Hollinger Holding™) is a holding company. Its sole
asset is an 86% membership interest in Vibra Healthcare, LL.C (“Vibra™). It has no other
assets and its only income is distributions from Vibra. It was established for its members

to hold the membership interest in Vibra.

Hollinger Holdings is a pass through entity with its percentage of the cash distributions
from Vibra being made to its members. It is taxed as a partnership for income tax
purposes with its percentage of the taxable income and losses from Vibra allocated
among the members in accordance with their ownership interests in Hollinger Holdings.

Hollinger Holding’s members and their ownership interests are as follows:

. Brad E. Hollinger — 83%
. James Diebold — 10%
. Carr Living Trust — 7%

Mr. Hollinger is the sole manager of Hollinger Holding.

Hollinger Holdings’s 2012 unaudited financial statement was prepared based upon
Hollinger Holding’s current capital account in Vibra and the current estimate of Vibra’s
taxable income for 2012. That statement is provided in ATTACHMENT 39.




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Douglas C. Yohe

Title: General Counsel

Company Name: Vibra Healthcare, LLC

Address: 4550 Lena Drive Suite 225 Mechanicsburg, PA 17055
Telephone Number:  717/591-5737

E-mail Address: dyohe@vibrahealth.com

Fax Number:

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner (proposed). HEALTH CARE REIT, INC.
Address of Site Owner: 4500 Dorr Street Toledo, OH 43615
Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 701 N. Walnut Street Springfield, IL 62702

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease or a lease.

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Vibra Hospital of Springfield, LLC

Address: 701 N. Walnut Street Springfield, IL 62702

] Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

] For-profit Corporation L] Governmental

X Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5§ percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownership.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any

person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating

|| in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.




Flood Plain Requirements not applicable, no construction
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.orq. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the

reqwrements of |I||n0|s Executlve Order #2005 5 ( ttg /Iwww hfsrb mmons go )

_APPEND DOCUMENTATION A AT _’ CHMENT 5 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
“APPLICATION FORM. i’ L ; _ : o

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements not applicable, no construction

[Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservatlon Act

"APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-6 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE .
APPLICATION FORM : : . . : . .

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - réfer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b}]
Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:

Part 1110 Classification: o [Check one only.]
. ] Part 1120 Not Applicable
X Substantive (] category A Project

X Category B Project

O Non-substantive
] DHS or DVA Project




2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

The proposed project is limited to a change of ownership of a long term acute care
hospital located in Springfield, lllinois. Neither the number of beds nor the IDPH-designated
categories of service currently provided at the hospital will change as a result of this project.

The project is classified as “substantive” because it involves a change of ownership and
control.




Project Costs and Sourges of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
heaith care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Coptracts

Modemization Contracts

) . .
Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees

Consuiting and Other Fees

$460,000

$460,000

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Acquisition

$10,100,000

$10,100,000

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

$10,560,000

$10,560,000

SOURCE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Cash and Securities

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

LMor‘tgages

$10,560,000

$10,560,000

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

$10,560,000

$10,560,000




Note on the Determination of Purchase Price for Illinois Hospitals

Kindred Healthcare, Inc. (“Kindred”) initially allocated the purchase price of
$187,000,000 based upon facilities' EBITDA with a minimum amount of $8,000,000
being allocated to owned facilities and minimum amount of $500,000 being allocated to
leased facilities. Since the Kindred Hospitals located at Springfield and Peoria both had
negative EBITDA, Kindred initially allocated $8,000,000 to the Springfield hospital and
$500,000 to the Peoria hospital. When Vibra Healthcare, LLC (“Vibra”) reviewed the
proposed allocations, it felt that the allocation to the Peoria hospital was reasonable, but
had some questions on the allocation for the Springfield hospital based on the value
assigned to it on Health Care REIT, Inc.'s project approval letter. Health Care REIT, Inc
initially valued the Springfield hospital at $10,000,000. Based upon this amount, Vibra
negotiated a $10,000,000 allocation of the purchase price to the Springfield hospital.

/O




Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicabie, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project X Yes 1 No
Purchase Price: $
Fair Market Value: $ included in acquisition price

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
X Yes [ ] No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ _200,000

Project Status and Completion Schedules

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
X None or not applicable ] Preliminary '
[ ] Schematics [ ] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): __by December 1, 2013

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[ ] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

X Project obligation will occur after permit issuance

7

State Agency Submittals

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
[] cancer Registry

[_] APORS

X All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

X All reports regarding outstanding permits -

Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being
deemed incomplete.

/{




Cost Space Requirements not applicable

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’'s or area’s portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space. ,

Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose_crrlhztt)tlg! Gross Square Feet

New Vacated

Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE
Medical Surgical
Intensive Care
Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE
Administrative
Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical
TOTAL

/2




Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the

application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: Kindred Hospital Springfield

CITY: Springfield

REPORTING PERIOD DATES:

From: January 1, 2012 to: December 31, 2012

Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical

Obstetrics

Pediatrics

Intensive Care

Comprehensive Physical

Rehabilitation

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care 50 274 - 7,027 none 50

Other ((identify)

TOTALS: 50 274 7,027 none 50

/3




CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of alimited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and ‘

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual thaiis the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of __Vibra Hospital of Springfield, LLC_*
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the [llinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and befief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

=7 Tl

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
(Bru& E. léull \ Ry /Dqslu Q. %Az.-
PRINTED NAME ' PRINTED NAME
pr‘uidcnd— G énera( Cou.ru el

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and svm%o before me Subscribed and swoyn 1o before '
this day of % 201< this X[ <Tday ofw

MONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Signature

NOTARIAL SEAL '
CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public
City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County

My Commission Expires December 22, 2013

NOTARIAL SEAL
CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public
City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County
' My Commission Expires December 22,2013

Seal

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant




CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any fwo of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthecaseofa pannershib, two of its general partneré (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of ___Vibra Healthcare, LLC *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifles that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

L P Cp

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
'BM E. Hb/“nstv I’b‘ﬂu Q /(.,/V“,
PRINTED NAME e , PRINTED NAME
@rc.n’&cnﬂ' (> eneeel Cmn‘.g. {
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me : Subscribged and swom to before me
this 213" day ofw this 2 {f‘%ay of f¥ )% 20/ 3

(72 AT

|_*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

Sighature of NCQMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Signature of Notary
‘ NOTARIAL SEAL COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANJA
Seal CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public : Seal NOTARIAL SEAL
~ City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public
My Commission Expires December 22, 2013 City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County
My Commission Expires December 22, 2013

e




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the autharized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s} are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and frusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of __Vibra Healthcare Il, LLC___ *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilifies Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
.her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

c%/ Ll Ch

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

Brak E. H‘u“»‘rgtv- (D::—glu Q. Z’l\*\

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
(President Genent  Counvel

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribad and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn io before me
édayofjr%_f%ﬂ this i)gﬁay of a»a , 20173

ENNSYLVANIA Signature of NGISIMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

NOTARIAL SEAL NOTARIAL SEAL
Seal CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public Seal CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public
City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County , City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County
My Commission Expires December 22, 2013 My Commission Expires December 22, 2013
. |

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

Ve



CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist),

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist); '

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of __Hollinger Holdings, LLC
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request,

@V TR C

SIGNATURE _ SIGNATURE
@FAA E. IA‘D“;'CS;r T vugles Q. J{hg
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
GDreJ;AW . G enend Cownge |
PRINTED TITLE ' PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before me Subscribed and swern to before me
this 2[54‘ day of __J) % 2012 this g{é‘day of ‘Wla»g,l. YIRS
Signature c%@]ucmm LT OF PENNSYLVANI Signature of NEEIFUONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVAN|A
_ NOTARIAL SEAL : NOTARIAL SEAL
Seal . CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public Seal CHRISTY A, RINKER, Notary Public
City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County - City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County
My Commission Expires December 22, 2013 i My Commission Expires December 22, 2013

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

.




SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable. '

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instarnces, the applicant shail attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records. )




ALTERNATIVES
1

2)

3)

Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS

REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.
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SECTION VI - MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS AND ACQUISITIONS/CHANGES OF
OWNERSHIP

This Section is applicable to projects involving merger, consolidation or acquisition/change of ownership.

NOTE: For all projects involving a change of ownership THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENT must be
submitted with the application for permit. The transaction document must be signed dated and
contain the appropriate contingency language.

A. Criterion 1110.240(b), Impact Statement
Read the criterion and provide an impact statement that contains the following information:
Any change in the number of beds or services currently offered.
Who the operating entity will be.
The reason for the transaction.
Any anticipated additions or reductions in employees now and for the two years following
completion of the transaction.
5. A cost-benefit analysis for the proposed transaction.

Hwh =

B. Criterion 1110.240(c), Access
Read the criterion and provide the foIIowmg
1. The current admission policies for the facilities involved in the proposed transaction.
2. The proposed admission policies for the facilities.
3. A letter from the CEO certifying that the admission policies of the facilities involved will
not become more restrictive.

C. Criterion 1110.240(d), Health Care System
Read the criterion and address the following:
1. Explain what the impact of the proposed transaction will be on the other area providers.
2. List all of the facilities within the applicant’s health care system and provide the following
for each facility.
a. the location (town and street address);
b. the number of beds;
c. allist of services; and
d. the utilization figures for each of those services for the last 12 month period.
3. Provide copies of all present and proposed referral agreements for the facilities involved
in this transaction.
Provide time and distance information for the proposed referrals within the system.
Explain the organization policy regarding the use of the care system providers over area
providers.
Explain how duplication of services within the care system will be resolved.
Indicate what services the proposed project will make available to the community that are
not now available.

oA
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the fatest 18 month period prior to the submittai of the application}:

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
e Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIIL. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a) Cash and Securiies - statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, inciuding the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundralsmg
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollaf amount, identification of any conditions of use, and the
estimated time table of receipts;
d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable or
_$10,560,000_ permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for any

interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that.the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting anticipated;.

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit
attesting to this intent;

f) . Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

$10,560,000 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE




Note on Project Financing

Vibra Healthcare, LLC (*“Vibra”) will be financing the acquisition of sixteen hospitals
and one skilled nursing facility from Kindred Healthcare, Inc. (“Kindred”) from two
financing sources. Two of the hospitals are located in Illinois.

The first source is Health Care REIT, Inc. (“HCN) and will consist of REIT financing
and a term loan. The amount of the REIT financing is $80,000,000 with HCN acquiring
the land and improvements of five hospital facilities that are owned by Kindred. These
facilities will be leased to Vibra One Holdings, LLC, a subsidiary of Vibra pursuant to a
Master Lease Agreement who will sublease them to indirect subsidiaries of Vibra. The
HCN term loan will be in the amount of $32,000,000.

The second financing source is MidCap Financial, LLC (“MidCap”) and will consist of a
senior term loan in the amount of $37,000,000. The balance of the purchase price for
these facilities and transactional costs will be funded from Vibra’s Revolving Line Credit

Facility with MidCap.
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability ~ Vibra Hospital of Springfield, LLC

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are compietely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA {Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor. .

See Sectlon 1120. 130 FlnanclaI>Wa|ver for mformatnon to be prowded

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the

applicabie hospital standards.

201

Current Ratio 3.57 3.43 3.33
Net Margin Percentage -129.4% -28.9% 4.1%
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization - - -
Projected Debt Service Coverage n/a n/a n/a
Days Cash on Hand 6 14 11
Cushion Ratio _ nfa n/a n/a

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with-any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.
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1X. 1120.130 - Financial Viability Vibra Healthcare, LL.C

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

4. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

5. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

6. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

‘ See Sectlon 1120 130 Fmanclal Wapver for mformatgon to berprqwded

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shalf be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage 43 3.9 4.2 4.8
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization 3.07 - 209 1.60 0.82
Projected Debt Service Coverage 1.57 1.54 1.67 1.77
Days Cash on Hand 9 6 17 ‘ 5
Cushion Ratio 171.84 122.77 347.40 104.03

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability Hollinger Holdings, LLC

All the applicants and co-applicants shali be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

7. Allof the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

8. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

9. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Sectnon 1120 130 Fmanclal Walver for |nfom1at|on to be provuded

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility. specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a heaith care system that
has-combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. [f the health care
system includes one or more hospitais, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Current Ratio _ n/a : n/a n/a n/a

Net Margin Percentage n/a n/a n/a n/a

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization - - - .

Projected Debt Service Coverage n/a n/a n/a n/a
Days Cash on Hand n/a nfa n/a n/a
Cushion Ratio n/a n/a n/a n/a

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calcuiation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.
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X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements.

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the foliowing:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period. .

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is
more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Id'entify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than fwo years following project
_ comple}_ion.
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XI. Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
Minois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospita! applicants shali report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate

methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported each year to the illinois
Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) - Year 2011 2012
Inpatient 0
Outpatient
Total 0
Charity (cost In dollars)
Inpatient $0 0
Qutpatient 0
Total $0 0
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year 2011 W 2012
Inpatient 5 85
Qutpatient
Total 5 85
Medicaid {revenue}
Inpatient . $21,832 $2,673,140
Outpatient $0 $0
Total $21,832 $2,673,140




XII. Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue. ’

2. if the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shalf be for each individual facility located in Hlinois. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. if the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient. mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
Year 2011 2012
Net Patient Revenue $3,665,112 $11,201,234
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $0 $0
Cost of Charity Care $0 $0




File Number 0430267-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

VIBRA HOSPITAL OF SPRINGFIELD, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY HAVING OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON
APRIL 30, 2013, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN
GOOD STANDING AS A FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 9TH

day of MAY AD. 2013

Y .Il"“ 2 A) ) /v'
W A
. 2678 '» 'd
Authentication # 1312901072 M

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 0430474-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeling:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON MAY 06, 2013,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A

FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 9TH

day of MAY AD. 2013

\v “‘. A\ .
b= = Q\ ’
Authentication #: 1312901112 ‘We/

Authenticate at: hitp://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 0429160-3

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeling:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

VIBRA HEALTHCARE II, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON MAY 03, 2013,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A

FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 9TH

day of MAY A.D. 2013

A s \ "-.. : IV Z
.‘\. Lo Y :
/' Z % ’
Authentication #: 1312901014 M

Authenticate at: http://www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SEGRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 0429175-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeling:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

HOLLINGER HOLDING COMPANY, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
HAVING OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON MAY 03,
2013, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD
STANDING AS A FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT
BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 9TH
day of MAY AD. 2013

A\NEA E s % g
Authentication #: 1312900966 . M

Authenticate at: hitp://www.cyberdriveiilinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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SITE CONTROL

Please see provided transactional documents.

ATTACHMENT 2
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Operating Identity/Licensee

Individuals with 5%+ interest in licensee:
Brad E. Hollinger (80%)
4550 Lena Drive Suite 225
Mechanicsburg, PA 17055

ATTACHMENT 3
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ITEMIZATION OF PROJECT COSTS

Category Clinical Non-Clinical Total
Consulting and Other Fees
~ |Loan Commitment Fee to

MidCap Financial, LLC S 194,100
Audit Fee S 7,400
CON-related S 145,000
Reguatory Fees-Other S 25,000
Hart Scott Rodino Filing S 4,500
Legal-transactional $ 17,700
Legal-local S 25,000
Legal-regulatory $ 3,600
Legal-bank counsel S 17,700
Misc. S 20,000
$ 460,000
Acquisition $ 10,100,000
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PP ¥ The Joint Commission

March 9, 2012
Re: # 507544

" CCN: #140306
_Program: Hospital
on Date: May 11, 2014

Sherry Hendricksen
Contact
Kindred Hospital Sprmgﬁeld
701 N. Walnut Street
Springfield, Illinois 62702

Dear Ms. Hendricksen:

This letter confirms that your January 1252012 unannounced for-cause survey was conducted for the
purposes of assessing comphance with the Medicare conditions for hosplta]s throtigh The Joint
Commission’s deemed status survey process e

Based upon the submission of your evidence of standards comphance on F ebruaxy 16 2012 The Joint
Commission is granting your orgamzatlon_ an accreditation dec1510n of Accredlted with an effective date

of January 13, 2012.

The Joint Commission is also recommendmg your organization for contmued Medlcare certification
effective Janvary 13, 2012. Please note that the Centers for Medicare and Medlcald Serv1ces {CMS)
Regional Office (RO) makes the final determmatlon regarding your Medxcare part1c1patlon and the
effective date of participation in accordance with the regulations at 42 CFR 489.13. Your organization is
encouraged to share a copy of this: Medlcare recommendation lette 1th your State Survey Agency.

This recommendation also applies !t_o;:_th_e_:.\_i_‘ollowmg jocation(s):

THC - Chicago, Inc
d/b/a Kindred Hospital Springfield
701 N. Walnut Street, Spnngﬁeld 1L 62702

We direct your attention to some 1mportant Joint Commission po]1c1e First, your Medicare report is
publicly accessible as required by the Joint Commission’s agreement W1th the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. Second, Joint Commission policy requlres that oy inform us of any changes in the
name or ownership of your organization, or health care services yo i

Sincerely,

wwiolintoomsission.org Headquarters
One Renaissance Boulevard o,
Qakbrook Terrace, 1L 60181 )
630 792 5000 Voice .

ATTACHMENT 11
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.
V{‘%’ The Joint Commission

Vs

Fh 5@-‘{ Prawim N, PHD

Ann Scott Blouin, RN, Ph.D.
Executive Vice President
Accreditation and Certiﬂcatiom'Operat-ibris

cc: CMS/Central Ofﬁce/Survey Certlﬁcatlog"' roup/D1v1s:on f Acute Care Servxces
CMS/Regional Office S /Surv y and Cemﬁ tlon Staff CL

wwwfointcommissisn.org Headquarters
One Renaissance Boulevard
Qakbrook Terrace, IL 60181
630 792 5000 Voice o
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- QA ViBRA

HEALTHCARE

May 17, 2013

Ms. Courtney Avery

Illinois Health Facilities
And Services review Board

525 West Jefferson

Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

. In accordance with Review Criterion 1110.230.b, Background of the Applicant, we are
submitting this letter assuring the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board that:

1. Vibra Healthcare, LLC (including its direct and indirect subsidiaries) does not have any
adverse actions against any Illinois facility owned and operated by the applicant during
the three (3) year period prior to the filing of this application, and

2. Vibra Healthcare, LLC (including its direct and indirect subsidiaries) authorizes the State
Board and Agency access to information to verify documentation or information
submitted in response to the requirements of Review Criterion 1110.230.b or to obtain
any documentation or information which the State Board or Agency finds pertinent to

this application.

If we can in any way provide assistance to your staff regarding these assurances or any other
issue relative to this application, please do not hesitate to call me.

Sincerely,

T > G

Douglas C. Yohe
Senior Vice President & General Counsel

Sworn to and subscribed, before me,
this 17" dayof __May _,2013.

ol =

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:
__COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
| oy R,
. R, Notary Public
City of Harrisburg, Dauphin%ounty ATTACHMENT 11
“#y Commission Expires December 22, 2013
4550 Tena Drive, Suite 225 * Mechanicsburg, PA 17055 ¢ 717.591.5700 e Fax 717.591.5710




PURPOSE

The project addressed in this application is limited to a change of ownership, and does
not bropose any change to the services provided, including the number of beds provided at
Kindred Hospital Springfield (to be renamed Vibra Hospital of Springfield. The facility will
continue to provide long term acute care services to residents of Springfield and the surrounding

communities, therein improving the health care and well-being of the population served.

The table on the following page identifies each ZIP Code/community that provided more
than 1% of the facility’s patients, during 2012. As is the case with acute care hospitals in
Springfield, and particularly their specialty programs, the LTACH attracts patients from
throughout southern Illinois, and has a service area that includes much of southem rural Ilinois.
During 2012, while approximately 22% of the patients admitted to the LTACH were Sangamon
County residents, 47.1% of the 2012 patients came from ZIP Code areas prviding fewer that
1.0% of the hospital’s admissions, demonstrating the broad reaches of the service area. No
change in the patient origin distribution is anticipated as a result of the proposed change of

ownership, or for any other reason. Also, GPSH is the only LTACH in Health Planning Area E-

01.
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Kindred Hospital Springfield

2012 Patient Origin
Cumulative
ZIP Code Community County % %

62702 Springfield Sangamon 8.8% 8.8%
62703 Springdfield Sangamon 7.7% 16.4%
62526 Decatur Macon 3.3% 19.7%
62656 Lincoln Logan 3.3% 23.0%
62521 Decatur Macon 2.6% 25.5%
62704 Springfield Sangamon 2.6% 28.1%
62557 Pana Christian 2.2% 30.3%
62650 Jacksonville Morgan 1.8% 32.1%
62881 Salem Marion 1.8% 33.9%
62476 West Salem Edwards 1.8% 35.8%
62522 Decatur Macon 1.5% 37.2%
62959 Marion Williamson 1.5% 38.7%
62681 Rushville Schuyler 1.5% 40.1%
62701 Springfield Sangamon 1.5% 41.6%
62471 Vandalia Fayette 1.5% 43.1%
61920 Charleston Coles 1.1% 44.2%
61401 Galesburg Knox 1.1% 45.3%
62948 Herrin Williamson 1.1% 46.4%
62056 Lichfield Montgomery 1.1% 47.4%
62675 Petersburg Menard 1.1% 48.5%
62565 Shelbyville Shelby 1.1%. 49.6%
62711 Springfield Sangamon 1.1% 50.7%
62568 Taylorville Christian 1.1% 51.8%
62094 Witt Montgomery , 1.1% 52.9%

ZIP Code areas with <1.0% of adm 47.1% 100.0%

The proposed change of ownership will address the health care status of the population
that has looked to this facility for care since its establishment, by continuing to provide the
LTACH services currently being provided, and with the continued utilization of the facility

serving as a measurement of success.
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ALTERNATIVES

Section 1110.230(c) requests that an applicant document that the proposed project is the

most effective or least costly alternative for meeting the health care needs of the population to be

served.

This project is limited to a change of ownership, and more specifically, Vibra Healthcare
LLC and related entities (“Vibra™) are acquiring fifteen hospitals, or portions thereof, from
Kindred Healthcare, Inc. and related entities (“Kindred”). Included in the acquisition is Kindred

Hospital Springfield.

In order to best respond to Section 1110.230(c), given the particular circumstances and
limited nature of the project, when developing an Application for Permit for a similar project, the
applicant’s consultants conducted a technical assistance conference with State Agency Staff
(July 12, 2010). That technical assistance conference was documented according to the agency’s
practice. Through the technical assistance process, the applicants were directed by State Agency
staff to set forth the factual background in response to Section 1110.230(c): On April 24, 2013, .
and following lengthy negotiations and a due diligence process, the asset purchase agreement
(“APA”) betweeﬁ Vibra Healthcare, LLC and Vibra Healthcare II, LLC, and Kindred Healthcare

Operating, Inc., and Kindred Healthcare, Inc., and included in this Application, was signed. This
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Application for Permit was filed for review by the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review

Board shortly thereafter.
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MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS, and
ACQUISITIONS/CHANGES OF OWNERSHIP

A Impéct Statement

The‘ proposed change of ownership will not have any material impact on the manner in
which services are provided af Kindred Hospital Springfield (“KHS”), to be renamed Vibra
Hospital of Springfield. The facility will continue to operate its existing approved number of

beds, and no expansion or contraction is anticipated, nor are any changes in the clinical services

provided by the facility anticipated.

The operating entity will be Vibra Hospital of Springfield, LLC, a recently-formed entity.

No changes to the staffing levels of the hospital, other than those changes normally
associated with the ongoing operations of a hospital are anticipated during the first two years

following the transaction.

The cost associated with the proposed change of ownership is limited to those costs
identified in ATTACHMENT 7, and the primary benefit of the project is the ongoing operation

of the facility.
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'B. Access
The proposed change of ownership will not result in any change in accessibility to

LTACH services for residents of the area. Confirmation, as required by review criterion

1110.240(c) is attached.

The admissions and charity care policies under which KHS- currently operates are
attached. Vibra has agreed that the admissions and charity care policies will be no less
restrictive than those currently in place, and it is anticipated that all charity care and admissions

policies currently in place will be retained for a minimum of one year.

It should be noted that because of the nature of long term acute care hospitals, the vast
majority of adinissions are transfers from acute care hospitals. Patients admitted to the acute
care hospital, without the financial resources to pay for their care are typically qualified for
Medicaid while in the acute care hospital. As a result, patients requiring charity care in the

LTACH setting are extraordinarily rare.

Consistent with the practices ‘of other LTACHs owned and/or operated by Vibra,

Medicaid recipients will be admitted to Vibra Hospital of Springfield.

B. Health Care System

The proposed change of ownership will not have any impact on any other area provider.

ATTACHMENT 19

#7




Vibra does not currently own or operate any licensed health care facilities in Illinois. A
Certificate of Need application addressing Vibra’s intended acquisition of the controlling interest
in a LTACH in Peoria, Illinois has been filed with the I[HFSRB. The Peoria hospital is located

approximately one hour and 15 minutes from the Springfield LTACH.

Kindred Hospital Springfield has referral agreements in place with Memorial Medical
Center (1 minute/.51 mile) and St. John’s Hospital (4 minutes/1.09 miles). The existing referral
agreements will all be retained, following the change of ownership, and it is Vibra’s intent that

additional agreements will be entered into with area nursing homes during the first six months

following the change of ownership.

Patient transfers and referrals from the LTACH are made by the patient’s physician and
family, with no requirement that transfers or referrals be made to specific facilities. The same

will apply following the proposed change of ownership.

Because of the specialty nature of an LTACH, and because the closest LTACH to the
Springfield facility is located more than an hour away, a discussion of duplication of services is

not applicable.

Kindred Hospital Springfield is a vital member of the Peoria hospital community, and in
addition to providing the only LTACH services in the area, the hospital is an active participant in

community activities, including:

. Hosting two blood drives with over 30 units of blood donated.
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Joint Quality Committees with Memorial Medical Center and St. John’s Hospital.
Meeting with three local Hospice Companies to discuss their services and potential of
providing inpatient care.

Hosting a luncheon for Memorial Medical Center Case Management and Social Workers
departments.

The hospital’s Clinical Liaison serves on the Advisory Board for the School of
Respiratory Care, and serves as the hospital’s American Lung Association Liaison.

The hospital’s Case Manager/Social Worker volunteers at the Panhandle Food Pantry in
Raymond, IL, and is an elected board member on the Doyle Public Library Board in
Raymond, IL

The hospital’s Director of Pharmacy volunteers with Mission Outreach sorting medical
supplies to ship to third world countries, and is a preceptor with Drake, St. Louis College
of Pharmacy, Midwestern University and SIUE to mentor and teach pharmacy students.
The ICP/EH/WCC is on the IDPH Healthcare-Associated Infections Advisory Council,
APIC-Central Illinois and an active member of P.E.O. (Philanthropic Education
Organization)

The DQM and CCO members of the Springfield Area Health Care Collaborative steering
committee.
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O/ VIBRA

HEALTHCARE

May 17, 2013

llinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
Springfield, Illinois

RE: Change of Ownership of
Kindred Hospital Springfield

To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that upon the proposed change of ownership and control of Kindred Hospital
Springfield, there will be no policies adopted that will result in restrictions to admissions to the

hospital.

It is the intent of Vibra Healthcare, LLC and it’s applicant subsidiaries (“Vibra™), that the
hospital (to be re-named Vibra Hospital of Springfield) will adopt the admissions-related policies
currently in effect at the hospital. Those policies, including financial aid policies, are included in
ATTACHMENT 19B of the Application for Permit addressing the change of ownership. The
admissions-related policies, as will be the case with all policies, will be evaluated a year
following the change of ownership. It is neither anticipated nor the intent of Vibra that the
admissions-related policies become more restrictive under Vibra’s ownership.

Sincerely, -

Brad Hollinger
CEO

Sworn to and subscribed, before me,
this 17" dayof _ May ,2013.

M __COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Notary Public NOTARMELRSEAL b
mmissi ires: CHRISTY A. RINKER, Notary Public

My Commission Expires: | City of Harrisburg, Dauphin County

* My Commission Expires December 22, 2013

ATTACHMENT 19

4550 Lena Drive, Suite 225 ® Mechanicsburg, PA 17055 ¢ 717.591.5700 ¢ Fax 717.591.5710

R




KINDRED HEALTHCARE CHARITY CARE AND FAIR BILLING POLICY

PURPOSE

This policy establishes guidelines for the development and application of financial assistance and
uninsured patient discount programs, by Kindred Healthcare (Kindred) hospitals located in
Nlinois. Such programs will be designed to assist individuals in financial need and other
medically underserved individuals or groups on a non-discriminatory basis to obtain appropriate
medical care and advice, and thereby improve the health of those in the communities served by

Kindred Hospitals.

PROCESS
. Definitions

1.1 Federal Poverty Level means the level of household mcome at or below which
individuals within a household are determined to be living in poverty, based on
the Federal Poverty Guidelines as annually determined by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services under authority of 42 U.S.C. 9902(2).

1.2 Financial Assistance/Charity Care means providing a discount to the charges
associated with a patient's hospital care based on financial need as described more
specifically in this Policy and in compliance with {llinois law.

1.3 Financial Assistance Programs means all programs set forth herein to provide
assistance to those in financial need including financial assistance/charity care,
uninsured patient discounts, and medical indigence discounts and payment caps.

1.4 Financial need means documented lack of sufficient financial resources to pay the
applicable charge for medical care. Financial nced may be evidenced by low
Family [ncome and asset levels, or high levels of medical debt in relation 1o
Family Income (medical indigence). Financial need determinations also take into
consideration other relevant circumstances, such as employment status or health
status of patient or other houschold members, which may affect a patient’s ability
to pay. The existence of financial need must be demonstrated by information
provided by or on behaif of the patient, and/or other objective data available to the
hospital. Kindred Hospitals may use asset or debt information to assist in making
a determination regarding financial need, when income data is unavailable or
inconclusive, or reported income is not supported by objective data.

Family Income means the sum of a family annual earnings and cash benefits from
all sources before taxes, less payments made for child support.

wh

1.6 lllinois Resident means a person who lives in lllinois and intends to remain fiving
in lllinois indefinitely. Relocation to lllinois for the sole purposes of receiving
health care benefits does not satisfy the residency requirement. :
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1.7 llinois Fair Patient Billing Act means the hospital fair patient billing act, as
passed by the Hlinois General Assembly in 2007, effective as of January 1, 2007,
and as amended from time to time.

1.8 Ilinois Uninsured Patient Discount Act means the hospital uninsured patient
discount act, as passed by the Hlinois General Assembly in 2008, effective as of
April 1, 2009, and as amended from time to time.

1.9 Kindred Hospital means an Hlinois hospital that is part of the national health care
system known as "Kindred Health Care.”

1.10  Medically Necessary Hospital-Services means:

1.10.1 For purposes of this policy "Medically Necessary Hospital Services"
means those hospital services required for the treatment or management of
a medical injury, illness, disease or symptom as determined by an
independent treating physician or other physician consulted by a Kindred
Hospital, including but not limited to, pharmaceuticals or supplies
provided by a Kindred Hospital to a patient covered by guidelines for
Medicare coverage if the patient were a Medicare beneficiary with the
same clinical presentation as the Uninsured Patient.

1.10.2 Examples of services that are not Medically Necessary Hospital Services
include. but are not limited to: (1) cosmetic health services; including
clective cosmetic surgery (exclusive of plastic surgery designed to correct
distfigurement caused by injury, illness, or congenital defect or deformity);
(2) services that are experimental or part of a clinical research program;,
(3) elective goods or services that are not necessary to treat an iliness or
injury; (4) private and/or non-Kindred medical or physician professional
fees: (5) services and/or treatments not provided at a Kindred Hospital; (6)
pharmaceuticals and supplies that do not meet the definition described in
Section 1.10.1 above; (7) non-medical services such as social and
vocational services; and (8) procedures or services for which the hospital
provides a discounted "flat rate" pricing package.

.11 Uninsured Patient means an individual who is an lllinois resident and is or was a
patient of a Kindred Hospital and at the time of service is or was not (a) covered
under a policy ot health insurance or (b) not a beneficiary under a public or
private health insurance, health benefit, or other health coverage program,
including Medicare, Medicaid, TriCare, SCHIP and All-Kids, high deductible
health insurance plans, workers' compensation, accident liability insurance, or
other third party liability plan.

Patient_Treatment Standards. All patients of Kindred Hospitals shall be treated with
respect and dignity regardless of their ability to pay for medical care, or their need for
charitable assistance. Individuals who may seek or are offered Financial
Assistance/Charity Care shall be objectively and fairly evaluated for eligibility,
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regardless of race, ethnic background, national origin, creed, or personal, political or
sexual orientation.

Financial Assistance/Charity Care and other Financial Assistance Programs

3.1

Discount for Low-Income Uninsured Patients. Financial Assistance/Charity Care
discounts or discounted fee schedules will be available for Medically Necessary
Hospital Services provided to Uninsured Patients who are unable to pay all or part
of the otherwise applicable charge for their care due to financial need, as
documented in accordance with this Policy. Patients demonstrating financial need
based on Household Income up to six hundred percent (600%) of the Federal
Poverty Level may receive a sliding-scale discount for such hospital care, at the
following levels:

3.1.1  Up to one hundred percent (100%) of the Federal Poverty Level: 100%
discount;

Between one hundred percent (100%) and two hundred percent (200%}) of
the Federal Poverty Level: 67% discount:

‘“d
)

3.1.3 Between two hundred percent (200%) and four hundred (400%) of the
Federal Poverty Level: 33% discount; and

3.1.4 Between four hundred percent (400%) and six hundred (600%) of the
Federal Poverty Level: 10% discount.

Payment_Caps_Under lllinois Uninsured Patient Discount Act. To the extent
required by the lllinois Uninsured Patient Discount Act, and subject lo other
eligibility standards and exclusions as set forth by such law including standards
based on asset level, Uninsured Patients who are Illinois residents having Family
Income of up to six hundred percent (600%) ot the Federal Poverty Level shall
not be required to pay to a Kindred Hospital more than twenty five percent (25%)
of such patient’s Family Income within a twelve (12) month period. Additionally,
Kindred Hospital charges to eligible Uninsured Patients cannot exceed the cost of
the Kindred Hospital services plus thirty-five percent (35%). Kindred Hospitals
may exclude a patient from the foregoing maximum collection amounts when the
patient owns assets exceeding six hundred percent (600%) of the Federal Poverty
Level, excluding the following assets: the Uninsured Patient's primary residence,
personal property exempt from judgment under Ulinois law, or any amounts hold
In pension or retirement plan.

Financial Assistance/Charity Care for Insured Patients. Subject to insurance and
governmental program restrictions {(which may limit the ability to grant a discount
on co-pays or deductibles, versus discounts on co-insurance), insured individuals,
federal program beneficiaries and other individuals who are not eligible for
Financial Assistance/Charity Care hereunder but who demonstrate medical
indigence or other financial need, may receive a Financial Assistance/Charity
Care discount in similar or different amounts as are available to Uninsured
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Patients under this policy, as determined appropriate under the circumstances by
Kindred Patient Financial Services.

4. Ehgibility for Financial Assistance Programs

4.1 Eligibility: Notwithstanding anything in this Policy to the contrary and for the
avoidance of doubt, all Kindred Hospitals will provide a discount from its charges
for all Medically Necessary Hospital Services exceeding $300 in any one patient
admission or outpatient encounter to any Uninsured Patient whe: a) applies for a
discount based on Kindred Hospital application procedures described herein; and
b) has a Family Income of not more than six hundred percent (600%) of the
Federal Poverty Level. To the extent required by state and federal law, all
Kindred Hospitals will provide financial assistance/charity care discounts to
eligible patients in connection with hospital emergency department and other
medical services necessary 1o diagnose, treat or stabilize an cmergency medical
condition.

4.2 Patient Responsibilitics. Kindred Hospitals may condition receipt of charitable
assistance under any Financial Assistance Progrant on a patient acting reasonably
and in good faith, by providing the hospital, within 30 days after the hospital's
request, with all reasonably-requested [inancial and other relevant information
and documentation neceded to determine the patient's eligibility for assistance,
including cooperating with the hospital's financial counselors in applying for
coverage under governmental programs, such as Medicare or Medicaid, accident
coverage, crime victims funds, and other public programs that may be available to
pay for health care services provided to the patient.

4.3 Conditions of Financial Assistance Program_Participation. Kindred Hospitals
may, as they determine appropriate, condition the receipt of financial assistance
on disclosure by the patient's immediate relatives, host family or sponsoring
organization of their financial information, residency and asset ownership
sufficient to demonstrate ability or inability to pay or contribute to the costs of
care for their relative or hosted guest. The hospital may further condition any
discretionary grant of financial assistance on a contribution toward the costs of the
patient's care and/or a guarantee of payment by such relatives, hosts or others (as
apphcable), in the event the patient fails to qualify for coverage through
governmental (i.e. Medicare or Medicaid) or private insurance and the patient
fails to pay the amounts for which she/he is responsible. Kindred Hospitals may
also require a patient to certify that all information provided in an application for
Financial Assistance/Charity Care is true and accurate and if any information is
false, any discount granted to the patient is forfeited and the patient is responsible
for the hospital's full charges.

44  Application for Financial Assistance. At the time of admission or registration, or
where feasible, prior to any clinical care (excluding emergency circumstances),
the patient or responsible party will be presented with an application form for
Financial Assistance/Charity Care (“Form"). Patients or responsible parties may
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request a Form and guidelines for the Financial Assistance Program at any time
(1.e. prior to or at the time of admission/registration, upon receipt of final bill or
first statement and at any point during the collection process). Kindred Hospital
designated administrative staff may interview the patient or responsible party as
well. '

Hospital Responsibilities for Communicating  Availability of Financial - Assistance/
Charity Care and Other Charitable Assistance Programs

5.1 Communicating _Availability of Financial Assistance/Charity Care Discounts.
Each Kindred Hospital will maintain effective methods of communicating the
availability of Financial Assistance/Charity Care discounts to all patients, in
multiple appropriate media and in multiple appropriate languages based on the
surrounding population of the applicable Kindred Hospital. The mechanisms that
Kindred Hospital will use to communicate the availability of Financial
Assistance/Charity Care will include, but are not limited to the following:

5.1.1 Signage. Signs shall be conspicuously posted in the admission, registration
and other appropriate areas of the hospital stating that patients may be
eligible for Financial Assistance/Charity Care discounts, and describing
how 1o obtain more information and how to apply for Financial
Assistance/Charity Care (See Section 4 above), including identification of
appropriate hospital representatives by title. Such signs shall be prepared
in English, Spanish, and any other language that is the primary language
of at least 5% of the patients served by the hospital annually.

Provision of Financial Assistance Materials to Uninsured Patients.
Kindred Hospitals will provide a summary of its Financial Assistance
Programs and a Financial Assistance application to all persons receiving
hospital care that it identifies as Uninsured Patients at the time of in-
person registration, admission, or such later time at which the patient is
first identified as an Uninsured Patient. For patients presenting in the
Emergency Department, all Kindred Hospitals will provide such Financial
Assistance materials at such time and in such manner as is consistent with
their obligations under the Emergency Medical Treatment and Active
Labor Act, as amended (EMTALA) to assess and stabilize the patient
before making inquiry of the patient's ability to pay.

LN
—_—
| O]

Brochures. Brochures, information sheets and/or similar torms ol written
communication regarding the hospital's Financial Assistance/Charity Care
policy shall be maintained in appropriate arcas of the hospital (e.g., the
Emergency Department, organized registration arcas, and the Business
Office) stating in at least English and Spanish, that the hospital offers
Financial Assistance/Charily Care discounts, and describing how to obtain
more information.

h
Lo
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1.4 Website. The website for each Kindred Hospital must include: a notice in
a prominent place that financial assistance is available at the hospital; a
description of the financial assistance application process, and a copy of
the Kindred Hospital financial assistance application form.

)

Billing Notices. Each Kindred Hospital shall include a note on or with the
Hospital bill and/or statement regarding the following: the hospital's
Financial Assistance/Charity Care program, how the patient may apply for
consideration under this program, a hospital contact (i.e. person, address,
email and phone number) for billing inquiries, a brief description of
services, dates services were provided, amounts owed for services, and
notice that a patient may obtain an itemized bill upon request.

wn
in

5.1.6  Financial Counselors. Each Kindred Hospital shall have one or more
financial counselors whose contact information is listed or provided with
other information concerning the hospital's Financial Assistance/Charity
Care discount program, who are available to discuss eligibility and other
questions concerning the program, and to provide assistance with

applications.

6. Communication _with Patients Regarding  Eligibility. Determination _for  Financial
Assistance/Charity Care.

6.1 Notification of Determination. When a Kindred Hospital has made a
determination that a patient's bill will be discounted or adjusted in whole or in
part based on a determination of financial need, the hospital will notify the patient
of such eligibility determination within a commercially reasonable time, and that
there will be no further collection action taken on the discounted. portion of the

patient's bill.

6.2 Changes in Patient Financials Circumstances. Adverse changes on the patient's
financial circumstances may result In an increase in any Financial
Assistance/Charity Care discount provided by the hospital. Under no condition,
however, would adverse or other changes in a patient's financial circumstances
affect the hospital's continuation of any ongoing treatment during an episode of
care. Along with other patient responsibilities described herein, a patient must
also communicate to the hospital any material change, within 30 days of such
change, in his or her financial situation that: (a) affects the patient's qualification
tfor Financial Assistance/Charity Care; or (b) his or her ability to abide by a
reasonable payment plan agreed upon with the hospital.

7. Application of Financial Assistance/Charity Care Determination to Past-Due Bills. When
a patient has been granted a discount on his or her bill under the hospital's Financial
Assistance/Charity Care program, the hospital nray apply a similar discount or adjustment
to all other outstanding patient bills. The hospital will advise the patient of such
adjustment of prior accounts, and that the hospital will forego any further attempted to
collect the amounts written off on such accounts.
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8. Updating Prior Financial Need Determinations

8.1 Effective Time of Financial Assistance Qualification  Determination. A
determination of a patient's Family Income in connection with the patient's
qualification for any form of Financial Assistance under this Policy will remain in
effect the patient's entire cpisode of care, provided that if an episode of care
continues for more than thirty (30) days, the hospital may request the patient to
re-verify or supplement Family Income information or other -eligibility
information as the hospital reasonably deems appropriate, including cooperating
with the . hospital financial counselor to re-evaluate the patient's potential
eligibility for coverage under Medicaid or other governmental programs and for
the hospital's Financial Assistance/Charity Care program.

8.2  Re-Verification Within Six_Months. When a patient (or the member of the
household of a patient) who has received a determination of financial need under
a Kindred Hospital's Financial Assistance/Charity Care program subsequently
receives or applies for care from the same or any other Kindred Hospital more
than 30 days but less than 6 months later, the hospital shall request appropriate
information necessary to update the patient’s or prospective patient's Financial
Assistance/Charity Care application and re-verify the prior financial need
determination. Kindred Hospital Financial Counselors will work with the patient
10 make the updating process as convenient as possible while assuring accuracy of
information. The hospital shall consider the patient's (or prospective patient's)
eligibility for Financial Assistance/Charity Care based on current income and
assets, and other objective information obtained by the hospital relating to
financial need, such as credit reports, new W-2s, tax returns or other data
acceptable under [llinois law.

8.3 New_Application Requirements. If more than six (6) months has expired since a

patient's Financial Assistance eligibility determination, the patient must submit a
new Financial Assistance application,

9. Financial Assistance/Charity Care Determinations Required Prior to Non-Emergency
Services. Kindred Hospitals will make all reasonable efforts to expedite the evaluation of
patients for cligibility for coverage under governmental programs and otherwise for
Financial Assistance/Charity Care. Such evaluations must gencrally be made by a
Kindred Hospital prior to provision of non-emergency hospital services. Persons who
have come to a Kindred Hospital emergency department seeking care for a potential
emergency medical condition will first receive a medical screening exam conducted in
compliance with EMTALA and all care needed to stabilize any emergency medical
condition, prior to an evaluation for coverage eligibility under governmental programs or
Financial Assistance/Charity Care.

10. Collection Activity Pursuant to the linois Fair Patient Billing Act

10.1  General. All Kindred Hospitals shall engage in reasonable collection activities for
collection of the portions of bills for which patienis are responsible after
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application of any Financial Assistance/Charity Care discount, uninsured patient
discount, insurance allowances and payment and other-applicable adjustments.
Kindred Hospitals may engage outside third parties to manage Financial
Assistance and collection programs and policies so long as such entity or
individual is contractually bound to comply with the Illinois Fair Patient Billing
Act and other applicable state and federal law.

10.2 Cessation of Collection Efforts on Discounted Amounts. No Kindred Hospital
will engage in or direct collections activity with respect to any discounts on health
care charges provided as a result of a determination of eligibility under the

“hospital's Financial Assistance/Charity Care program, unless it is later determined
that the patient omitted relevant information relating to actual income or available
assets, or provided false information regarding financial need or other eligibility
criteria. Balances remaining after financial assistance discounts are applied will
be subject to reasonable collection activity, consistent with this Policy.

10.3  Use of Reasonable Legal Processes to Enforce Patient Debt. Reasonable legal
process, including the garnishment of wages, may be taken by any Kindred
Hospital to collect any patient debt remaining after any adjustment or discount for
Financial Assistance/Charity Care, uninsured status or other reason, under the
following circumstances and after written approval from an authorized Kindred
Hospital cmploycc that such criteria have been satisfied:

10.3.1 For Uninsured Patients:

¢ The hospital has given the patient the opportunity to assess the
accuracy of the hospital's bill:

*  The hospital has given the Uninsured Patient the opportunity to apply
for Financial Assistance/Charity Care and/or a (a) reasonable payment
plan, or (b) discount for which the patient is eligible pursuant to the
IHlinois Patient Uninsured Discount Act:

* The hospital has given the Uninsured Patient at least 60 days after
discharge or rcceipl of services to apply for Financial
Assistance/Charity Care,

« If the patient has indicated, and the hospital is able to verify, that the
patient is unable to pay the full amount due in one payment, the
hospital has offered the patient a reasonable payment plan;

+ If the hospital and patient have entered into a reasonable payment plan,
the patient has failed to make payments when due; and

+ “There is objective evidence that the patient's Family Income and/or
assets are sufficient 1o meet his or her financial obligation to the
hospital.
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10.3.2 For Insured Patients:

» The hospital has provided the patient the opportunity, for at least 30
days after the date of the initial bill, to request a reasonable payment
plan for the portion of the bill for which the patient is responsible;

« If the patient requests a reasonable payment plan, and fails to agree to
a plan within 30 days after such request; and

« If the hospital and patient have ¢ntered into a reasonable payment plan,
the patient has failed to make payments when due.
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Klﬁdl@ d Admission Policy Page 1 of 1

H e hcare

Kmdred Hos__pltal -
Springfield =

POLICY

Kindred Hospital Springfield is committed to caring for patients needing long-term
acute care services. Kindred Hospital Springfield is committed to enhancing the
continuum of care offered in the communities we serve, including care of patients
who have limited or no financial resources.

PROCEDURE
1. Kindred Hospital Springfield will assess the clinical needs of all patients
referred by the medical community in and around Springfield.

2. Indigent patients who are clinically appropriate shall not be denied admission
based upon lack of payment source.

3. Admission must be without regard to referral source.

4. Once admitted, patients will be maintained in Kindred Hospital Springfield if the
patient continues to meet acute care criteria regardless of ability to pay.

References:

Original Date. ' MM/YY
Review/Revision Date MM/YY
-1 Supersedes all Previous = .

-.Approi'éd: - :v'l.)ate_’v/_/__

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION TO KINDRED HEALTHCARE INC. AND AUTHORIZED PARTIES

ATTACHMENT 19
X7




PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS PATIENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered
into as of the 17" day of January, 2011 between St. John’s Hospital of the Hospital Sisters of the
Third Order of Saint Francis, an Illinois not for profit corporation (hereinafter "Facility" or
"Institution"), a licensed facility under the laws of the State of Illinois, and THC — Chicago, Inc.
d/b/a Kindred Hospital Springfield (hereinafier "Kindred” or "Institution”), a licensed hospital
under the laws of the State of Illinois,

RECITALS:

A. Kindred is a licensed acute care hospital located in Springfield, Illinois, which
provides long-term hospital care to medically complex, chronically ill patients.

B. Facility is a licensed acute care facility located in Springfield, Iilinois, which
provides comprehensive hospital services.

C. Both parties to this Agreement want to ensure continuity of care and treatment
appropriate to the needs of each patient in each facility; and

D. Both parties wish to cooperate to achieve these objectives.

AGREEMENT:

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Purpose of Agreement. Each Institution agrees to transfer to the other Institution

and to receive from the other Institution patients in need of the care provided by their respective
Institutions for the purpose of providing improved patient care and continuity of patient care.

2. Patient Transfer. The need for transfer of a patient from one Institution to the
other shall be determined by a patient's attending physician and shall not create a medical hazard
to the patient. When the need for services available at the other Institution has been identified,
the transferring Institution shall immediately notify the receiving Institution of the impending
transfer. The receiving Institution agrees to admit the patient as promptly as possible, provided
that all conditions of eligibility for admission are met and bed space is available to accommodate
that patient. Prior to moving the patient, the transferring Institution must receive confirmation
from the receiving Institution that it can accept the patient. The transfer of a patient shall not be
predicated upon unlawful considerations of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin, sexual
orientation, pregnancy, marital status, veteran status or handicap.

3. Provision of Information to Each Institution. Each Institution shall provide the
other Institution with the names or classifications of persons authorized to initiate, confirm, and
accept the transfer of patients on behalf of the receiving Institution. Each receiving Institution
shall state specifically where transferring patients are to be delivered at its premises. The
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Institutions agree to provide to each other information about the type of resources available to
offer services and the type of patients and health conditions that the receiving Institution will
accept.

4. Patient Records and Personal Effects. The transferring Institution agrees to send
with each patient, at the time of transfer, or, in the case of emergency, as promptly as possible
after the transfer, pertinent medical and other information necessary to continue the patient's
treatment without interruption, together with essential identifying and administrative
information, including any required transfer forms. The information shall include, when

appropriate, the following:

a. Initial diagnostic impression;

b. Patient's name, address, hospital number, age, and name, address, and
telephone number of the next of kin;

¢.  History of the injury or illness;
d. Condition on admission;

e. Vital signs - including Glasgow Coma Score - prehospital, during stay in
emergency department, and at time of transfer;

f.  Treatment provided to patient, including medications given and route of
administration;

g.  Laboratory and X-ray findings, appropriate laboratory specimens, and X-ray
films;

h.  Fluids given, by type and volume;
i.  Name, address, and phone number of physician referring patient;

jo  Name of physician at receiving Institution who has been contacted about
patient; and

k. Advance directives, if any, executed by the patient.

Each Institution agrees to supplement the above information as necessary for the
maintenance of the patient during transport and treatment upon arrival at the receiving
Institution. In addition, each Institution agrees to adopt a standard form to inventory a patient's
personal effects and valuables that shall accompany the patient during transfer. The records
described above shall be placed in the custody of the person in charge of the transporting
medium who shall sign a receipt for the medical records and the patient's valuables and personal
effects and in turn shall obtain a receipt from the receiving Institution when it receives the
records and the patient's valuables and personal effects.
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3. Transportation of Patient. The transferring Institution assumes the responsibility
to arrange for the appropriate mode of transport and level of medical attendance necessary for
the safe transportation of the patient. The receiving Institution’s responsibility for the patient's
care shall begin when the patient is admitted, either as an inpatient or an outpatient, to that -

Institution. -

6. Transfer Consent. The transferring Institution shall have responsibility for
obtaining the patient's consent to the transfer to the other Institution prior to the transfer, if the
patient has the capacity to provide consent. If the patient is not so capacitated, the transferring
Institution shall obtain a family member's or legally authorized representative’s consent. The
Institutions recognize the right of an individual to request transfer into the care of a physician
and hospital of the individual’s own choosing.

7.  Billing Arrangements. All bills incurred with respect to services performed by
either Institution for patients received from the other pursuant to this Agreement shall be
collected by the Institution rendering such services directly from the patient, third-party
insurance coverage, or other sources normally billed by the Institution.

8. Quality Assurance. Both Institutions agree to provide to one another Quality
Assurance findings, results, methods for improvement and results of implementation for any
service provided hereunder on a regular basis.

_ 9.  Parties' Relationship. Facility and Kindred shall have exclusive control of the
management, assets, and affairs of their respective institutions. Each of the parties hereto shall
be responsible only for its own acts and omissions with respect to patient care, and neither party
by virtue of this Agreement assumes any liability for any debts or obligations of either a financial
or a legal nature incurred by the other party to this Agreement.

10. Term. This Agreement shall be effective for the period beginning January 17, 2011
for a term of one (1) year, and thereafier it shall be renewed automatically for successive periods
of one (1) year, uniess sooner terminated as herein provided. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this
Agreement may be terminated by either party for any reason by giving thirty (30) days' prior
written notice to the other party of its intention to withdraw from this Agreement and by ensuring
the continuity of care to patients who already are involved in the transfer process. To this end,
the terminating party will be required to meet its commitments under this Agreement to all
patients for whom the other party has begun the Agreement's transfer process in good faith.
However, it is expressly understood that if either party's license to operate or accreditation is
revoked, then this Agreement shall terminate on the date such revocation becomes effective.

11. Regulatory Requirements. Facility and Kindred agree that the obligations created |
hereunder wil} be performed in conformity with all applicable standards of the Joint Commission
and federal, state and local laws and regulations.
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12. Notices. Any notices permitted or required by this Agreement will be deemed
made on the day personally delivered in writing or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, to
the other party at the address set forth below or to such other person and address as either party
may designate in writing:

If to Kindred: Kindred Hospital - Springfield
~ 701 North Walnut Street
Springfield, IL 62702 v
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

and to:

THC - Chicago, Inc.

680 South Fourth Avenue

Louisville, KY 40202

Attn: President of Hospital Operations
cc:  Chief Counsel, Hospital Division

If to Facility: St. John’s Hospital
800 E. Carpenter Street
Springfield, IL 62769

13. Licensure and Certification. Each Institution hereby certifies the following:

a. Licensure. It is licensed by the State of Illinois.

b.  Certification. It has all other approvals and certificates required by the
appropriate state and federal agencies in order to qualify for and participate in Medicaid and
Medicare.

14, Insurance.

a. By Facility. During the Term of the Agreement, Facility shall either (i)
maintain at its sole cost and expense, comprehensive general public liability and property
damage insurance in an amount adequate to cover the risks associated with providing Services
under this Agreement, or (i) maintain an equivalent program of funded self-insurance. Facility
shall provide Kindred with proof of insurance, upon request. Facility will be responsible for
notifying Kindred as to any alteration of coverage, cancellation or other termination at least
thirty (30) days prior to the occurrence of such event, or immediately upon notice to Facility.

b. By Kindred. During the Term of the Agreement, Kindred shall either (i)
maintain at its sole cost and expense, comprehensive general public lability and property
damage insurance in an amount adequate to cover the risks associated with this Agreement or (ii)
maintain an equivalent program of funded self-insurance. Kindred shall provide Facility with
proof of insurance, upon request. Kindred will be responsible for notifying Facility as to any
alteration of coverage, cancellation or other termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the
occurrence of such event, or immediately upon notice to Kindred.

%
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15.  Compliance and Core Values. Both parties have in place a Corporate Compliance
Program (individually a "Program" and collectively the "Programs") which have as their goal, to
ensure that the parties comply. with all applicable laws. The Programs focus on risk
management, the prevention of misconduct and the promotion of good corporate citizenship,
including the commitment to uphold a high standard of ethical and legal business practices. Both
parties acknowledge their mutual commitment to their respective Program and agree to conduct
all activities which occur pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with the underlying

philosophy of their respective Program. :

16. HIPAA Compliance. Each party shall comply with the Standards for Privacy of
Individually Identifiable Health Information and all other regulations promulgated under Section
264 of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA") and other
state or federal health information privacy and security laws (collectively, "Privacy Laws").
Furthermore, in the event any Privacy Laws are amended, the parties shall promptly amend the
Agreement to conform with any new or revised Privacy Laws in order to ensure that Hospital is
at all times in conformance with all Privacy Laws. '

17. Miscellaneous.

a. Governing Law; Severability. This Agreement shall be construed under,
and governed in accordance with, the laws of the state of Illinois. The invalidity or
unenforceability of any provision herein shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any

other provision.

b. Nondiscrimination. Neither party shall discriminate on the basis of race,
color, sex, age, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, pregnancy, marital status, veteran
status or handicap in providing services under this Agreement or in the selection of employees or

independent contractors.

c. Headings. The headings of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only
and are not to be considered in the interpretation of this Agreement.

d. Assignability. Neither party may assign its rights or obligations hereunder
without the prior written approval of the other; provided, however, that such an assignment may
be made to an entity which is related by virtue of a common parent corporation or which is
directly or indirectly, wholly owned or controlled by the same entity as the assigning party.

e. No Waiver. No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement will
be construed to be a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement, whether of a similar or

dissimilar nature.

f. Survival. Any provisions of this Agreement creating obligations extending
beyond the term of this Agreement will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement,
regardless of the reason for such termination.
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g  Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement constitutes the entire

agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements,
undertakings and understandings of the parties in connection with the subject matter hereof,
This Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing duly signed by both parties.

h.  Confidentiality. In order to facilitate the performance of this Agreement,
each party may deem it necessary to disclose to the other certain proprietary and/or confidential
information. Such information may include, without limitation, patient information, personnel
information, financial information, market information, pricing information and service delivery
information. Each party agrees to keep such information confidential. This Section 17(g) shall
survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason.

i.  Electronic Storage of Agreement. The parties agree that the original of the
Agreement, including the signature pages, may be scanned and stored in a computer database or
similar device, and that any printout or other output which is readable, and which is shown to be
an accurate reproduction of the original of this document, may be used for any purpose just as if
it were the original Agreement, including the proof of the content of the original writing and the
signing of the original writing.

j-  Ethical and Religious Directives. The parties acknowledge that Contractor
is operated in accordance with the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic Healthcare
Services as promulgated, from time to time, by the United States Conference of Catholic
Bishops, Washington, D.C., of the Roman Catholic Church ("Ethical and Religious Directives"),
and that the principles and beliefs of the Roman Catholic Church are a matter of conscience to
Contractor. It is the intent and agreement of the parties that neither this Agreement nor any part
hereof shall be construed to require Contractor to violate said Ethical and Religious Directives in
its operation and all parts of this Agreement must be interpreted in a manner that is consistent
with said Ethical and Religious Directives.

k. Exclusion from State or Federal Health Care Programs. Each party
represents and warrants to the other party that it is not: excluded from participation in any
Federal Health Care Program; debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded from participating in
any other federal or state procurement or nonprocurement program or activity; or designated a
Specially Designated National or Blocked Person by the Office of Foreign Asset Control of the
U.S. Department of Treasury. Each party further represents and warrants to the other party that to
its knowledge, there are no pending or threatened governmental investigations that may lead to
such exclusion. Each party shall notify the other party in writing upon the commencement of
any such exclusion or investigation of the party within seven (7) business days of receiving first
notice of such exclusion or investigation. Each party shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement immediately upon leaming of any such exclusion affecting the other party and shall
be kept informed of the status of any such investigation. :

18. Sexual Assauilt Transfer Plan. Facility shall accept the transfer of any victim of
sexual assault that presents to Kindred. The sexual assault transfer form is attached hereto and

incorporated herein by reference.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
date first above written. '

St. John’s Hospital of the Hospital Sisters of THC - Chicago, Inc. d/b/a Kindred Hospital -

the Third Order of Saint Francis, an lllinois not  Springfield

for profit corporation
Title: Chief Executive Officer Title: Chief Executive Officer

W

(“Provider”™) _ (“Hospital™)

Dated: Dated:

1033118_3/MIS
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Section 545 APPENDIX B Sexual Assault Transfer Plan Form
Sexual Assault Transfer Plan

Note: All Transfer plans'shall conform to the requirements of the federal Emergency
Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (42 USC 1395dd).

Instructions: This form describes the minimum components of a Sexual Assault Transfer
Plan as part of a community-based or area wide plan. References to the “Regulations”
mean the Hiinois Department of Public Health Sexual Assault Survivors Emergency
Treatment Code (77 lll. Adm. Code 545). All responses shall be written as clearly and
succinctly as possible. If additional sheets are necessary, attach those sheets to the
page on which the information is originally requested. A completed copy of the Plan
shall be retained by the Hospital. The completed Plan shall be sent to:

The lllinois Department of Public Health
Division of Health Care Facmtles and Programs
525 West Jefferson, 4™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761-0001
Tel. 217/782-7412
Fax 217/782-0382

Part A _
Name of Transfer Hospital: !ﬁ LN C\ e LE f‘ < T) % ’k N \ %\H A f&g\ £ \ L
Mailing Address: (O . Wa Lact ?.J( %m \(\:~¥x~i\ } _.aey

Contact Person / Title for Program: N o \‘?\3\ 9 < \ C,

Telephone:@'\D_S2% - 1217 ext 7628 Faxx @) _Saxn- 1633

Contact Person / Title for Billing: ) \\ A\
Telephone:(__ ) ext. Fax: ()
Estimated number of patients served in coming FY: \

Name of affiliated Treatment Facility: SN 0-..;\’\ \f\\' S \”\ ! '5,‘;) \)r & k

Distance of Transfer Hospital from affiliated Treatment Facility: L% wile

Estimate of maximum distance patient may have to travel to receive treatment:

Co. '7:) ”W\.x\ Wiy

Name, telephone number and address of ambulance providers: i‘\ MEAY o \i\ m\) ti \k‘w\ ¢ i
o < Pl ERANE
\ > yems < 4\

<:""‘\"‘ > *“‘NQ ' “‘A\i"ﬁ*Ac?H\&fENT 19
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Appendix B - Sexual Assault Transfer Plan Form
Page 2

PartB
I. Describe the geographic area to be covered by the transfer facility, procedures

that will be adopted that are compatible with the needs of alleged sexual assault
survivors, type of staff available and steps that will be taken for public education
at least annually to ensure that such a program is understood by other medicai
_facilities, police, State’s Attorneys, local sexual assault crisis centers, social
service agencies, and citizen groups. The hospital shall formalize transfer
arrangements with one or more treatment facilities by contracts, letters of
agreement or standard operating procedures as part of a part of a community-
based or area wide plan. (See Section 545.65 of the Regulations and attach any

Jjointly-signed agreements to the plan).

2. Describe the hospital’s reasons for electing to provide services to alleged sexual
assault survivors as a transfer facility rather than a treatment facility. Factors that
should be discussed include accessibility to the community, existing hospital
facilities and services, availability and location of nearby treatment facilities, and
any other relevant community health planning considerations. .

3. Describe any local ordinances, municipal codes, rules or regulations that apply to
the health care or reporting procedures for alleged sexual assault survivors in the

hospital’s area.

4. Describe the procedures that will be taken to ensure privacy and support for the
survivor. Services shall be in accordance with Section 545.65 (b), (c), (g) and (i)

of the Regulations.

5. Attach a copy of the emergency department treatment record that shall be used as
required by Section 545.65 (e) of the Regulations.
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Appendix B - Sexual Assault Transfer Plan Form
Page 3

Part C
Review and sign the Conditions of Approval
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The following conditions of approval shall apply to all Sexual Assault Emergency Transfer
Programs. These conditions are enumerated below to insure that all transfer facilities are
informed and aware of their responsibilities in accordance with the Sexual Assault Survivors
Emergency Treatment Code (77 IlIl. Adm. Code 545) and the Sexual Assault Survivors
Emergency Treatiment Act (410 ILCS 70).

1. The hospital shall provide an appropriate medical screening examination and
initial stabilizing treatment. (See Section 545.65 of the Regulations).

2. The hospital shall provide pre-transfer and transfer services to alleged sexual
assault survivors in accordance with Section 545.65 of the Regulations.

3. The hospital shall provide services at no direct charge to the patient. If the patient
is neither eligible to receive such services under the Illinois Public Aid Code nor
is covered by policy of insurance, the hospital shall seek reimbursement only
from the Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services (HSF).

4. The hospital shall comply with the Emergency Medical Treatment Act (210 ILCS
70) and the federal Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (42 USC:

1395dd).

S. The hospital shall submit billings to Iilinois Department of Healthcare and Family
Services (HSF) on properly authenticated vouchers supplied by the HSF for all
eligible patients fer whom hospital emergency services were provided pursuant to
its Transfer Plan.

6. The hospital shall maintain all patient medical records in a manner and for a
duration established by hospital policy and not for less than 10 years, In
accordance with Section 6.17 of the Hospital Licensing Act.

7. The hospital shall maintain all business and professional records in accordance
with acceptable business and accounting practices, and all records shall be legible.
Records shall be retained for a period of not less than three years after the date of
service or as required by State law, whichever period is longer, except that if an
audit is initiated within the required retention period, the records shall be retained
until the audit is completed and every exception is resolved.
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Appendix B - Sexual Assault Transfer Plan Form

Page 4
For the Hospital:
™y P %
e v LS "0
q:“‘gg—n C@ww e [T O
Administrator Signature Date

[ 13 :
Shzor g Hendi s o
Please Print Administrator's Name

Ly A J— . o } o,y
‘x‘/\\ N 4’?\ Weso A‘ ol Sotined 2\ C\ t’){“ﬁ » O
Hospital Name \ X \

(Source: Amended at 27 lil. Reg. 1567, effective January 15, 2003)
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT
between
MEMORIAL MEDICAL/CENTER
and
THC CHICAGO, INC, d/b/a KINDRED HOSPITAL SPRINGFIELD

THIS TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and executed on the Jast date
written below, by and between MEMORIAL MEDICAL CENTER, an affiliate of MEMORIAL
HEALTH SYSTEM, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, located and doing business in
Springfield, IHlinois (hereinafter referred to as “Transferring Hospital”) and THC CHICAGO,
INC. d/b/a KINDRED HOSPITAL SPRINGFIELD, located and doing business in Springfield,
llinois (hereinafter referred to as “Receiving Facility”).

RECITALS:

A. The Transferring Hospital and the Receiving Facility desire, by means of this
Agreement, to assist physicians in the treatment of patients.

B. The parties hereto specifically wish to facilitate: (a) the timely transfer of patients
and the medical records and other information necessary or useful for the care and treatment of
patients transferred; (b) the determination as to whether such patients can be adequately cared for
other than by either of the parties hereto; (c) the continuity of care and treatment appropriate to
the needs of the transferred patient; and (d) the utilization of knowledge and other resources of
both healthcare entities in a coordinated and cooperative manner to improve the professional
healthcare of patients.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and in
reliance upon the recitals, set forth above and incorporated by reference herein, the parties hereto
agree as follows:

L DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES.

1.1 Joint Respongibilities. In accordance with the policies and procedures of the
Transferring Hospital and upon the recommendation of the patient’s attending
physician that such a transfer is medically appropriate, such patient shall be
transferred from the Transferring Hospital to the Receiving Facility as long as the
Receiving Facility has bed availability, staff availability, is able to provide the
services requested by the Transferring Hospital, including on-call specialty
physician availability, and pursuant to any other necessary criteria established by
the Receiving Facility. In such cases, the Receiving Facility and the Transferring
Hospital agree to exercise best efforts to provide for prompt admission of the
patient. The parties shall comply with all EMTALA requirements with respect to
such transfers. Receiving Facility and Transferring Hospital shall meet
periodically to review the transfer process, of policies and procedures in order to
improve the process, including efficiency, clinical care and patient safety.
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Transfer Agreement

Memorial Medical Center

THC Chicago, Inc. d/b/a Kindred Hospital Springficld
Page 2

1.2 Receiving Facility. The Receiving Facility shall accept patients in need of
transfer from the Transferring Hospital pursuant to the criteria set forth in Section
1.1, Further, Receiving Facility shall designate a person to coordinate with
Transferring Hospital in order to establish acceptable and efficient transfer

guidelines.

1.3 Transferring Hospital. Transferring Hospital shall request transfers of patients to
Receiving Facility pursuant to the criteria set forth in Section 1.1. Further,

Transferring Hospital shall:

a. Have responsibility for obtaining the patient’s informed consent for the
potential transfer to Receiving Facility, if the patient is competent. If the
patient is not competent, the consent of the legal guardian, agent with
power of attorney for health care, or surrogate decision maker of the

patient shall be obtained.

b. Notify Receiving Facility as far in advance as possible of the impending
transfer.

c. Transfer to Receiving Facility the personal effects, including money and

valuables, and information related thereto. A standard form shall be
adopted and used by both parties listing such personal effects and
appropriate documentation and transfer procedure. The personal effects
and valuables of a patient transferred to the Receiving Facility shall be the
responsibility of the Transferring Hospital until delivered to and accepted
by the appropriate personnel of the Receiving Facility, at which time such
personal effects and valuables shall become the sole responsibility of the

Receiving Facility.

d. Affect the transfer to Receiving Facility through qualified personnel and
appropriate transfer equipment and transportation, including the use of
necessary and medically appropriate life support mecasures.  The
Transferring Hospital retains all legal liability and responsibility with
respect to the patient who is being transferred until the patient is admitted
to the Receiving Facility in compliance with the Receiving Facility’s
admission policies and procedures. '

e. Transfer, and supplement as necessary, all relevant medical records, or in
the case of an emergency, as promptly as possible, transfer an abstract of
the pertinent medical and other records necessary in order to continue the
patient’s treatment without interruption and to provide identifying and
other information, including contact information for referring physician,
name of physician(s) at Receiving Facility contacted with regard to the
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Transfer Agreement

Memorial Medical Center

THC Chicago, Inc. d/b/a Kindred Hospital Springfield
Page 3

patient (and to whom the patient is to be transferred), medical, social,
nursing and other care plans, Such information shall also include, without
limitation and if available, current medical and lab findings, history of the
illness or injury, diagnoses, advanced medical directives, rehabilitation
potential, brief summary of the course of treatment at the Transferring
Hospital, medications administered, known allergies, nursing, dietary
information, ambulation status and pertinent administrative, third party
billing and social information.

1.4  Non-Discrimination = The parties hereto acknowledge that nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed to permit discrimination by either party in the
transfer process set forth herein based on race, color, national origin, handicap,
religion, age, sex or any other characteristic protected by federal or Illinois state
laws, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended or any other applicable
state or federal laws. Further, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and
the American Disabilifies Act require that no otherwise qualified individual with
an handicap shall, solely by reason of the handicap, be excluded from
participation in, or denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in a
facility certified under the Medicare or Medicaid programs.

1.5  Name Use. Neither party shall use the name of the other party in any promotional
or advertising material unless the other parly has reviewed and approved in
writing in advance such promotional or advertising material.

1.6  Standards. Receiving Facility shall ensure that its staff provide care to patients in
a manner that will ensure that all duties are performed and services provided in
accordance with any standard, ruling or regulation of The Joint Commission, the
Department of Health and Human Services or any other federal, state or local
government agency, corporate entity or individual exercising authority with
respect to or affecting Receiving Facility. Receiving Facility shall ensure that its
professionals shall perform their duties hereunder in conformance with all
requirements of the federal and state constitutions and all applicable federal and
state statutes and regulations.

1.7 Exclusion/Debarment. Both parties certify that they have not been debarred,
suspended, or excluded from participation in any state or federal healthcare
program, including, but not limited to, Medicaid, Medicare and Tricare. In

~ addition, each party agrees that it will notify the other party immediately if it
subsequently becomes debarred, suspended or excluded or proposed for
debarment, suspension or exclusion from participation in any state or federal
healthcare program.
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Transfer Agreement
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1.8 Confidentiality. Receiving Facility agrees to maintain confidentiality. Receiving
Facility acknowledges that certain material, which will come into its possession or
knowledge in connection with this Agreement, may include confidential
information, disclosure of which to third partics may be damaging to Transferring
Hospital. Receiving Facility agrees to hold all such material in confidence, to use
it only in connection with performance under this Agreement and to relcase it
only to thosc persons requiring access thereto for such performance or as may
otherwise be required by law and to comply with the Health Insurance Portability

and Accountability Act.

1.9 Access to Books and Records. Both parties will maintain records relating to their
responsibilities under this Agreement for a period of one (1) year from the date of
services. During normal working hours and upon prior written and reasonable
notice, each party will allow the other party reasonable access to such records for
audit purposes and also the right to make photocopies of such records (at
requesting party's expense), subject to all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations governing the confidentiality of such records.

1.10 Non-Referrals. Neither party shall be required to make referrals or be in a
position to induce referrals or othcrwisc generate business for the other party as a
condition of transferring or receiving patients hereunder.

FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS.

2.1  Billing and Collection. The patient is primarily responsible for payment for care
provided by Transferring Hospital or Receiving Facility. Each party shall bill and
collect for services rendered by each party pursuant to all state and fedceral
guidclines and those set by third party payors. Neither the Transferring Hospital
nor the Receiving Facility shall have any liability to the other for billing,
collection or other financial matters relating to the transfer or transferred patient.
Since this Agreement is not intended to induce referrals, there should be no
compensation or anytbing of value, directly or indirectly, paid between the parties,
unless otherwise stated in federal or state regulations.

2.2  Insurance. Each party shall, at its expense, maintain through insurance policies,
self-insurance or any combination thereof, such policies of comprehensive general
liability and professional liability insurance with coverage limits of at least One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Three Million Dollars
{$3,000,000.00) annual aggregate to insure such party and its Board, officers,
‘employees and agents acting within the scope of their dutics and employment
against any claim for damages arising by reason of injuries to property or personal
injuries or death occasioned directly or indirectly in connection with services
provided by such party-and activities performed by such party in connection with
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this Agreement. Either party shall notify the other party thirty (30) days prior to
the termination or modification of such policies.

I,  TERM AND TERMINATION.

31  Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of the last
signature at the end of this agreement for a term one (1) year therefrom and shall
automatically renew for successive one (1) year periods up to four (4) years,
unless either party gives the other party written notice of intent not to renew this
Agreement at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the initial term, or
the then-existing renewal period, subject however to termination under Section

3.2 herein.

3.2  Termination. This Agreement may be sooner terminated on the first to occur of

the following:
a. Written agreement by both parties to terminate this Agreement.
b. In the event of breach of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement

by either party and the failure of the breaching party to correct such breach
within ten (10) business days after written notice of such breach by either
party, such other party may terminate this Agreement immediately with
written notice of such termination to the breaching party.

c. Debarment, suspension or exclusion, as set forth in Section 1.7.

d. In the event that either party to this Agreement elects to terminate this
Agreement, without the terminating party being required to specify a
reason or cause which has precipitated that termination, by delivering at
least a thirty (30) day notice to the other party.

3.3 Effects of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, as hereinabove
provided, no party shall have any further obligations hereunder, except for

obligations accruing prior to the date of termination.

V. MISCELLANEOQUS.

4,1  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and contains
all of the terms and conditions between the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereunder. Receiving Facility and Transferring Hospital shall be entitled to
no benefits or services other than those specified hercin. This Agreement
supersedes any and all other agreements, either written or oral, between the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof,
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Transfer Agreement
Memorial Medical Center
THC Chicago, Inc. d/b/a Kindre BoRBRS ENiREALTH CARE

6
Page HOSPITAL TRANSFER AGREEMENT

This Transfer Agreement is made and entered into as of February 1, 2013, b and
betwgen Kingiedsbrospiat @tﬁnmwmmmﬁﬁpr&wstw@cmm
Peoria, Illinginoi6] 40fmapodlylaraemstatel, Ruldifiditatdernginatbdabth 8@&?@“‘(‘%&&1&%&“7‘1
located at 5$33Noptt{es) cThiR darteBomnit ﬁelginn,rﬂ;mﬁjg tepgfi of and be binding upon
the parties, their successors, legal representatives and assigns, and neither this
Agreement nor any right or RBGKT aflceiving Facility or Transferring Hospital
WHEREA Syisinhinegein shill hgreehwtaridi0r iwoluniarilyasold,| refleOR: 2518
exclusive. corithsiub® i eopuatof e ahenpatypADY itsmps ahasisament. is, yoid. g,

debts and other Ob lgtslc;?g independent contractors under this Agreement. Nothing in this

WHEREAS"MHE%&MSH%&}%@“%H B s I ey

the moral mr lo gie?gggl %ont % xgec Sonuo%?erxl' the manner or method by f\}'111;13 anl}: of
h CIViC waiver by exthcr party of a breach or
V(\;HEREA% S‘Xf‘}}é’i’tgl mne? é@; 3 S50 1 85 s OB
advertising a Waw 0 a@ X Hq;me%@&hﬂﬂa@wm@ﬁ Vrhiedr,
name is to by 0 1ccs requu‘ed herem shall be considered effective when dchvgred in person, oz
{at rtified mail, postage prepaid, return receip

WHEREAS, %%%lﬁféls;ﬁ iavgsthcécnght to enterplnto transfer agreements with

other mstxtuf S.

Recewmg Facility: Transferring Hospital:
WHEREAS, parttes of this Agreement desire to assure continuity of care and
treatment applhptﬁaﬁ oshitaldpringfieldh pahenl*@?f%’é@i%ﬁiﬁ?%ﬁ%xhty and to use

the skills, resé0icgrin®WplwtSdtestant of both iked and cooperatwe
fashion, to im§pongfelilcd?d® both the acute f Qcﬁe %Zgé‘s £ 111
Attn: CEO ' At Vice Presi pera o

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants, terms and
conditions coftifed in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:

THC Chicago, Inc. *  grcTIONI
680 South Fo ]liﬁi RESP ITIES
Louisville, K m AL ONSIBIT

1. The h&ﬂﬂal ifg%é‘é"{p gm atlents from the Nursing Home upon request of the
patient’s phy as possible, and according to the following plan,

depenc?ﬁig up% lé%ﬁ Wﬁ?{}f@fo‘ﬁf the need of the patient:

a. hatients deslared a5 SHIBUEISReRtoRSTTmRbYSIRRpesba by oachlitters)
as a 3 Xemgnate by written notice.

44 by PetinmEsion anmsgww«hmdmﬂaempmw@ﬁoﬁgfm%qﬂ%é’e dasplly

lisdenifsionto fhghgspitaks witbbgfplacet sithhe basﬁpmmislg@m?fspmissmn,
chargeable tt;so the other, unless such liability is imposed by law and that this

Agreement shall not be construed as seeking to either enlarge or diminish any
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Transfer Agreement

Memorial Medical Center

THC Chicago, Inc. d/b/a Kindred Hospital Springfield
Page 7

obligations or duty owed by one party against the other or against a third party.
The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement
shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed
in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted. The
section titles and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference
only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement, ‘

4.5  This Agreement is a result of negotiations between the parties, none of whom
have acted under any duress or compulsion, whether legal, economic or
otherwise. Accordingly, the partics hereby waive the application of any rule of
law that otherwise would be applicable in connection with the construction of this
Agreement that ambiguous or conflicting terms or provisions should be construed
against the parly who (or whose attorney) prepared the executed Agreement or
any earlier draft of the same.

4.6  Each party represents to the other party that such representing party will
continuously comply, where appropriate, with the provisions of the “Health
Insurance. Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, the “Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act” and all of the standards or
rules which may be prescribed by the Department of Health and Human Services
during the term of this Agreement as then being applicable to the relationship
created between the parties as a consequence of this Agreement (collectively,
HIPAA”). The representing party will promptly report to the other party any usc
or disclosure of any patient health information which his not permiited under
HIPAA, whenever such representing party becomes aware of such improper use
or disclosure. The representing party, in addition, will timely act to mitigate, to
the cxtent practicable, any harmful effect, which is known to or which could
reasonably be anticipated by such representing party, of a use or & disclosure of a
patient’s health information in violation of HIPAA.

{80257522¥\ 885694 Hinshaw Reviewed T2 (OBIRVERENTI1 9
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- Transfer Agreement
Memorial Medical Center
THC Chicago, Inc. d/b/a Kindred Hospital Springfield
Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics have hereto executed this Agreement in multiple
originals as of the last date written below.

RECEIVING FACILITY: TRANSFERRING HOSPITAL:
THC Chicago, Inc. d/b/a Memorial Medical Center ~
Kindred Hospital Springﬁcld

;‘n-a AW i n{“\u AR t)L E’*i« By: Charles Callahan, Ph.D.
Tltle Ceo ! Title: Vice President, Operations
Dated: /2 E.0/0 Dated:__/? o (200

This Contract Has Been
Reviewed By Lagal Counsel

Sevling Templote e Lvano
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AMENDMENT 1 |

This Amendment is exccuted, entered into and delivered on this &2 ( (c;_:\'day of

AT BN » 205 2. (the “Bxceution Dute”), by and between (i) THC - Chicago,

Ine. (*Kindred”) and (i) Memorial Medical Center (“Contractor”). who are collectively

identificd in this Amendment as the “Parties,” in order to modity and revise, effective as of the

Execution Date, the Out-Patient Surgery and Diagnostic Services Agreement, which is dated as
of the 17 day of January, 2011 (the “Agreement™), in the following respects:

L. Paragraph 1.c of the Agreement is deleted, and the following is then substituted in
replacement of the defeted Pacagraph 1.c:. :

c. Contenctor shall provide the facilitics, staff and equipment to perform out-
patient surgical procedures far those paticnts appropriately referred - from Hospital, as
mutually ogreed to by the partics. In addition, Contractor shall, upon prompt
identification by Hospital, ensure special nceds will be met and special equipment will be
provided when required for the patient.

2. Paragraph 2.b of the Agreement is deleted, and the following is then substituted in
replacement of the deleted Paragraph 2.b: :

b. Hospital shall notify the Contractor of the impending transfer of & patient
for testing and confirm the test seheduling. 16 wil! be the responsibility of the Hospital to
arrange transporfation beiween the fucilitics and to promptly identify and report to
Contractor any special needs or equipment required for the patient.

3. Paragraph 2.c of the Agreement is deleted, and the following is then substituted in
replacement of the deleted Paragraph 2.c:

c. Transporiation personnel will accompany the patent who is being
transferced to the Contractor, and will romain with the transferred paticot while the
Services which are required by the patient are being performed by the Contractor,
Hospital shall ensure ransportation persomnel accompanying the patient are qualified to
provide care to the patient who is being transferred given that patient’s condition.

4. The heading of Section 5 shail be changed 10 “Insurance and ndemnilication.”
5. The following shall be added to Section 3:

c. Indenmification. FEach Party, by the execution and delivery of this
Agreement, expressly indemnifies the other Party with respect to any and all lizbilities,
costs, including reasonable attorneys® fees, losses, cluims, demands or judgments arising
from or as a consequence of the actions, inactions of other nctivities of the indemnifying
Party performed, or which the indemnifying Party has failed to perform, under or
putsuant to this Agreement. The indemnifying Party. at the sole cost and expensc of that

ATTACHMENT 19



indemnifying Party, will assume and will thereafter defend, utilizing legal counsel and
other consultants who are specificully approved, in advance, by the Party being
indemnificd, any lawsuits or other litigation which is instituted or filed agninst the
indemnified Party, or where the indemnified Party is subsequently impleaded or joined,
by reason of such actions, inactions or other activitics by or on the part of the

indemaifying Party.

Except as and to the extent specifically amended and modified by this Amendment,
howaever, the Agreement, as sucly Agrecment exists on the Effective Date, including all of the
amendments and modifications which preceded this Amendment, so long as such amendments
and modifications are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Amendment, otherwise remains

in full force and cffect,

It witness whereol, the Parties to this Amendinent, acting, where applicable, by and
through their authorized representatives, respectively cxecuted and then delivered this
Amendment, on the Execution Date, in pursuance of the uses and purposes which are described

and contained in this Amendment,

Memorial Mcdical Center

By: 7

Name: Kevieg] EnploNd

Title:  Yi0e (echfary- Rosicss Devel

This Contract Has Bean
Raviewed By Legal Coungel

ety Faliter #1710

THC — Chicago, Inc. d/b/a
Kindred Hospitat Springfield

By: e ey “/::3.- QMQ-..N

Th Y
Name: “heccne Mtnd vl o o8~

wrrditle: _ .o
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Driving Directions from 701 N Walnut St, Springfield, Illinois 62702 to Memorial Medic... Page 1 of 1

Notes

{i.r) mapquest

Trip to:

Memorial Medical Center

701 N 1st St
Springfield, IL 62702
(217) 788-4700

0.51 miles / 1 minute

701 N Walnut St, Springfield, IL 62702-4913

1. Start out going south on N Walnut St toward W Miller St. Map 0.01 Mi
0.01 Mi Total

2. Take the 1st left onto W Miller St. Map . 0.5 Mi
0.5 Mi Total

3. Turn left onto N 1st St. Map 0.03 Mi

0.5 Mi Total
4. 701 N 1ST ST is on the left. Map
Memorial Medical Center

701 N 1st St, Springfield, IL 62702
(217) 788-4700

Total Travel Estimate: 0.51 miles - about 1 minute

©2013 MapQuest, inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

BOOK TRAVEL with mapquest ~ 877-577-5766

ATTACHMENT 19
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Driving Directions from 701 N Walnut St, Springfield, Illinois 62702 to Saint John's Hos... Page 1 of 1 .

N_ofes

L mapquest
Trip to:

Saint John's Hospital
800 E Carpenter St
Springfield, IL 62702

(217) 757-6330
1.09 miles / 4 minutes

€3 701 N Walnut St, Springfield, IL 62702-4913

@ 1. Start out going south on N Walnut St toward W Miller St. Map 0.09 Mi
0.09 Mi Total
2. Take the 2nd left onto W Carpenter St. Map 1.0 Mi
1.1 Mi Total
'; 3. 800 E CARPENTER ST is on the right. Map

Saint John's Hospital

Psychiatric Program Institute

800 E Carpenter St, Springfield, IL 62702
(217) 757-6330

Total Travel Estimate: 1.09 miles - about 4 minutes

©2013 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

BOOK TRAVEL with mapquest 877-577-5766

ATTACHMENT 19
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Members
Vibra Healtheare, LLC:

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vibra Healthcare, LLC and subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company™) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,

and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in members’ deficit, and cash flows for the years

then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Fivancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financtal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are {ree from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statemcnts. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to frand or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controf relevant 1o the entity”s preparation and
fair presentation of the consofidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
ihe circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as cvalvating Lhe overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our andit
opinton.

Opinion

In ovr opinion, the consolidated financial statemenis referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Vibra Healthcare, LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 201 ), and the results of
their operations and their cash flows.for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generalily

accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matter
As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company adopted new authoritative guidance for the

presentation and disclosure of patient service revenue, provision for bad debts, and the allowance for doubtful
accounts in 2012. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our andits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a ~

whole. The accompanying supplementary consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis
rather than to present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the individual companies and is
not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in rclation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

?WMMCJ

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
April 26, 2013
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Vibra Healthcare, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012 and 2011

{in thousands)

sf

2012 2011
Assets D
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 21,165 $ 7437
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for
doubtful collections of $7,184 in 2012 and
$8,775in 2011 74,786 73,401
Prepaid insurance 8,580 6,186
Other current assets 9173 12,437
Total current assets 113,704 99,461
Property and equipment, net 34,741 30,518
Goodwill 43,891 38,102
Intangible assets 7,266 7,568
" Deposits and other long-term assets 5720 4,957
Deferred financing and lease costs, net 3,488 2,464
Total assets $208,810 $183.070
| iabilities and Members’ Deficit
Current liabilities:
Revolving credit facility $ 52,116 $ 42,124
Current maturities of long-term debt 8,811 7,738
Current maturities of obligations under capital leases 1,185 1,477
Accounts payable 17,783 14,615
Accounts payable — affiliates 1,839 263
Accrued liabilities 28,300 24,359
Accrued insurance claims __ 3478 3,252
. Total current liabilities 113,021 93,828
Other jong-term liabilities 8,481 9,193
Deferred rent 7,063 12,348
Deferred credits and gains 22222 17,035
Long-term debt 58,250 57,680
Obligations under capital leases 21,580 22,553
Total liabilities 230,817 212,607
Members' (deficit) equity:
Total controliing interest (27,384) (32,629)
Non-controlling interest 8,577 3,092
Total members’ deficit {21,807) {29,537)
Total liabilities and members’ deficit $208.810 $183.070
See notes to consolidated financial statements
4
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Vibra Healthcare, LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Members’ Deficit

Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011
(in thousands)

€7

2012 2011
Revenue:
Net patient service revenue (net of contractual
and discounts) $473,401 $439,343
Provision for doubtful collections {6,515} (6,332)
Net patient service revenue 467,886 434,011
Contract revenue 1514 1,926
Other revenue 8,169 6,889
Prior year third party payor settlement 1,898 (4,950}
Total revenue 477 467 437,876
Expenses:
Cost of services 340,370 319,233
Rent expense 44,503 39,622
General and administrative 44,866 37,480
Interest expense 12,231 12,957 -
Corporate allocation 11,317 9,502
Depreciation and amortization 4,775 4,132
Pre-opening costs — DeSoto - 2,248
Total expenses 458,062 425174
Income from operations 19,405 12,702
Non-operating revenue (expense):
Gain on transfer of operations and refinancing activities 1,667 6,031
Other non-operating revenue (expense} net 47 {1,391}
Consolidated net income before non-controlling interest 21,119 17,342
Non-controlling interest in net income (885) (276)
Net income 20,234 17,066
Members' deficit — beginning {32,629) (38,553)
Distribution to members of Vibra Healthcare, LLC (14,589) { 9,992)
Distribution to non-controlling member of '
Post Acute Medical, LLC (400) {1,150
Members’ deficit — ending $ (27.384) $ (32.629)
See notes to consolidated financial stétements
5
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Vibra Healthcare, LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

{in thousands)

2012 2011
Operating activities:
Net income $ 20,234 $ 17,086
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Provision for deubtful collections 5,515 5,332
Depreciation and amortization 4775 4,132
Non-controlling interest in net income 885 276
Gain on transfer of operations - (6,031}
Prior year third-parly settlements (1,898) 4,950
{Gain) loss on minority investments (147) 948
Amortization charged to rent expense 17 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
net of effects from acquisition of business:
Patient accounts receivable {5,582) {17,216)
Prepaids and other current assets 960 (3,072)
Deposits {654) 65
Accounts payable 3,730 (3,042}
Accrued liabilities 4.992 7.738
Deferred rent 792 1,886
Net cash provided by operating activities 33.619 13,032
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment {4,383} (2,335)
Cash used in business acquisition (2,228) (2,705)
RPurchase of minority investments (1,330} (2,250}
Distributions from minority investments 1,368 -
Increase (decrease) in intangible assets - (700)
Proceeds from transfer of aperaticns - 5370
Net cash used in investing activities {6,573} (2,620)
Financing activities:
Net borrowings under revolving credit facility 9,991 4,024
Borrowings from long-term debt 4,109 3,752
Repayment of long-term debt (9,189) (7,695)
Repayment of capital leases, net (1,959) (1,481)
Capital contributions — non-controlling interests 2,000 3,900
Distribution to members of Vibra Healthcare, LLC {14,589) (9,992)
Distribution to members of Post Acute Medical, LLC (800) {2,300)
Payment of financing costs (1,991) {1,133)
Deferred credits and gain on acquisitions, net {890) (1,504)
Net cash used in financing activities {13,318) (12,429)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,728 {2,017)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 7.437 9,454
Cash and cash equivalents ~ ending $ 21165 $ 7437
Supplemental cash flow informaftion,
Cash paid for interest § 12231 $ 12857
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and
financing activities:
Assets acquired in business acquisition £ 5795 $_ 3434
Debt assumed in business acquisition 3 4880 $ 3364
Asset additions funded by capital tease and debt $ 2537 3 831
Liabilities assumed in business acquisition $ 915 s 70
Note recejvable from transfer of operations $ - 5 833
See nctes to consolidated financial statements
ATTACHMENT 39
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended Decernber 31, 2012 and 2011

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Vibra Healtheare, LLC ("Vibra” and the “Company™) was formed on May 14, 2004, and operates independent
rchabilitation hospitals ("TRF") and long-term acute care hospitals ("LTACH") located throughout the United States,
Vibra, a Delaware limited liability company ("[LLL.C"), has an infinite life. The members’ liability is limited to its capital
contribution. Vibra's wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries consist of:

SUBSIDIARIES ' LOCATION

92 Brick Road Operating Company, LLC Mariton, NJ

1300 Campbell Lane Operating Company, LLC Bowling Green, KY
7173 North Sharon Avenue Operating Company, LL.C Fresno, CA

1125 Sir Francis Drake Boulevard Qperating Company, LLC Kentfield, CA

4499 Acushnet Avenue Operating Company, LLC New Bedford, MA
8451 Pearl Street Operating Company, LLC : Thornton, CO
Northern California Rehabililation Hospital, 1.1.C Redding, CA

Vibra Specialty Hospitai of Dallas, LLC {majority owned) DeSoto, TX

Vibra Specialty Hospital of Portland, LLC Portland, OR
Kentlield THCI Holding Company, LLC Kentfield, CA
Vibra of Southeastern Michigan, LLC Detroit, Ml

Vibra Hospital of San Diego, LLC San Diego, CA
Vibra Hospitat ot San Bernardino, LLC San Bernardino, CA
Vibra Hospital of Fort Wayne, LLC Fort Wayne, IN
Vibra Hospital of Northwestern Indiana, LLC Crown Point, TN
Vibra Hospital of Mahoning Valley, LLC Boardman/Warren, OH
Vibra Real Estate, LLC Mechanicsburg, PA

~ The Company provides long-term acute care hospital services and inpatient acute rehabilitative hospital care at its
hospitals. Patients in the Company’s LTACHSs typically suffer from serious and often complex medical conditions that
require a high degree of care. Patients in the Company’s IRFs typically suffer from debilitating injuries including
traumatic brain and spinal cord injuries, and require rehabilitation care in the form of physical, psychological, social and
vocational rehabilitation services. The Company also operates 27 outpatient clinics affiliated with 9 of its 15 hospitals.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Vibra, its wholly-owned and majority-
owned subsidiaries, and effective December 1, 2006, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) authoritative guidance regarding consolidation of variable interest entities, Post Acute Medical, LLC (“Post
Acute™), a variable interest entity (the “VIE™). Vibra has no ownership in the VIE; however, control exists through
common ownership and Vibra’s guarantee of Post Acute’s lease and debt agreements. All intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

At December 31, 2012, and for the year then ended, the VIE had assets of $38,389,000, liabilities of
$35,706,000, and net income of $276,000.

The interests held by other parties in subsidiaries, limited liability companies and limited partnerships owned and
controlled by the Company are reporied in the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets as non-controiling
interests. Non-controlling interests reported in the consolidated statements of operations reflect the respective interests
in the income or loss of the subsidiaries, limited liability companies and limited partnerships aftributable to the other
parties, the effect of which is removed from the Company’s consolidated results of operations.
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Lise of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimales and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and Habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial

statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from

thosc cstimates. :

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates market.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are reported at net realizable valuc. Accounts are written off when they are determined to be
uncollectible hased upon management’s assessment of individeal accounts. The allowance for doubtful collections is
estimated based upon a periodic review of the accounts receivable aging, payor classifications, and application of
historical write-o[T percentages.

Inventories

Inventories of pharmaceuticals, pharmaceutical supplies, and medical supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. These inventories totaled $3,336,000 and $2,740,000 at December
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and are included in other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheetl.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are computed

using the straight-line method over the lesser of the estimated useful lives of the asgets or the term of the |ease, as
appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 30 years

Ruildings under capital lease Lesser of 15 ycars or remaining leasé term
Ieaschold improvements Lesser of 15 years or remaining lease term
Furniture and equipment 3-10 years

In accordance with FASB authoritative guidance regarding accounting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets, the Conmipany reviews the realizable value of long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances occut which
indicatc recorded costs may not be recoverable.
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company adopted FASB authoritative guidance regarding goodwill and other intangible assets. Under FASB
authoritative guidance, goodwilf and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are reviewced annually or more
frequently if impairment indicators arise. In accordance with FASB guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets,
an entity will have an option to calculate annually the fair value of an goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets if
Lthe entity determines that is more likely than not that the asset is impaired. This update permits the Company to asscss
qualitative factors when testing goodwill and other intangiblc assets for impairment. Tf, after assessing the totality of
events and circurnstances, the Company concludes that it is more likely than not that the goodwill or intangible asset is
impaired, then the Company is required to take further action. During 2012, the qualitative faclors evaluated by the
Company included the financial performance, cost factors, and cash flows. No impairment loss was recorded in 2012 and
2011, :

Management has allocated the intangible assets between identifiable intangibles and goodwill. Intangible assets, other
than goodwill, consist of values assigned to Cestificates of Necd (“CONs™), licenses, non-compete agreements entered
into in conjunction with the Progressive and DeSoto hospital acquisitions, and lease acquisition costs incurred for the
DeSoto acquisition (see Footnote 2). The useful life of each class of intangible assets is as follows:

Goodwill Indefinite
Certificates of Need/Licenses Indefinite
Non-compete Agreements 3-5 years
Lease Acquisition Costs 15 years

Deferred Financing and Lease Costs

Costs and fees incurred in counection with the Medical Properties Trust, LLC (“MPT") acquisition note and leases, the
MidCap loan, the lease and loan financing of the Progressive and DeSoto properties and the refinancing of the Denver
and New Bedford leases with Carter-Validus REIT (see Footnote 2) have been deferred and are being amortized over the
term of the loans and cases using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.
Amortization expense was $967,000 in 2012 and 381,000 in 201}. During 2012, the Company refinanced the leases of
two MPT-{eased hospitals located in Denver, CO and New Bedford, MA (see Footnote 9) which resulted in a loss on
refinancing totaling $ 165,000 for unamortized deferred financing costs and is included in amortization expense for 2012,

Accrued and Other Long-Term Liabilities

Under the Company’s insurance programs, the Company is liablc for a portion of its losses. The Company estimates its
liability for losses based on historical trends that will be incurred in a respective accounting period and accrues that

estimated liability. These programs are monitored quarterly and estimates are revised as necessary to take into account
additional information. The Company has accrued $10,436,000 and $8,174,000 related to these programs at December

31,2012 and 2011, respectively.

In August 2010, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2010-24, Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related
Insurance Recoveries, which amended guidance relating to the presentation of insurance claims and related insurance
recoveries. The guidance clarifies that health care entities may not net insurance recoveries against a related claim
liability. In addition, the amount of the claim liability should be determined without consideration of insurance
recoveries, and estimated insurance recoveries, if any, should be measured and presented separately within the balance
sheet, The adoption of the amended guidance resuited in presenting insurance recoveries and related liabilities on a gross
basis in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and did not impact members’ equity. The insurance recovery
reported was $1,385,000 and $858.000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The insurance recovery is included
in deposits and other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
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VIBRA HEALTHCARLE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

In December 2011, the Company recorded a liability of $4,930,000 represcnting a Medicare cost report settlement
payable for its Portland hospital’s January 2008 cost report. An extended repaymentl plan was approved for 60 months
through Decermber 2016, Payments are due monthly with an assessed interest rate of 10.875%. Management believed
that incorrect allocations were used in the settlement formula and as a result of an appeal, the settiement due was reduced
by $1,898,000 in May 2012. The Company continues to make the agreed-upon payments, and the obligation will be
fulfilled in November 2014,

Other long-term lahilities consist of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011

Insturance reserves $7.258 $4,922
Portland Mcdicare repayment

{net of current portion) 1,147 4,006

Qther 76 225

18481 39,133

Deferred Rent

The excess of straight linc rent expense over rent paid is credited fo deferred rent on a monthly basis. At December 31,
2012 and 2011, rent expense excceded rent paid on a cumulative basis by $7,063,000 and $12,348,000 respectively. n
2011, in conjunction wilh the sale and relocation of the Dallas hospital operations, the company recorded a deferred gain
of $1,304,000 from the write-off of deferred rent on this property (sce Footnote 2).

As 4 result of the Jease refinancing of its Denver and New Bedford propetties in 2012, the Company recorded a deferred
gain of $6,077,000 from the write-oif of deferred rent on these properties (see Footnote 9).

Deferred Credits and Gains

The Company has recognized deferred credits and gains on various acquisition and refinancing transactions. The excess
of assets acquired over liabilitics assumed i3 recorded as a deferred credit and the elimination of the unamortized
deferred rent through debt refinancing, net of the deferred finanzing cost write-off is recorded as a deferred gain. The
delerred credits and gains are being amortized over the lease term as a reduction of rent expense (see Foomote 9).

Deferred credits and gains are compriscd of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011

Assets received in acquisitions funded by operating leases $13,711 $13,711
Elimination of unamortized deferred rent through debt
refinancing, net of write-off of deferred financing costs 15,328 8,558
Other 642 783
29,681 23,052
Less accumulated amortization 7.358 6.017
$22,222 $17.035
10
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NQTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Revenue Recognition

Net paticnt service revenue consists primarily of charges lo patients and are recognized as services are rendered. Net
palient service revenue is reperted net of provisions for contractual adjustments from third-party payors and patients. The
Company has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Company at amounts different from

iis eslablished rates. The diflerences between the estimated program reimbursement rates and the standard billing rates
are accounted for as contractual adjustments, which are deducted from gross revenues to arrive at net patient service
revenue, Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted
charges, and per diem payments. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as {inal settlenents are determined. Patient accounts receivable
resulling from such payment aivangements are recorded net of contractual allowances.

A significant portion of the Company’s net patient service revenue is generated directly from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. As a provider of services to these programs, the Company is subject to extensive regulations. The inability of
a hospital to comply with regulations can result in changes in that hospital’s net patient service revenue generated from
these programs. The following table shows the percentage of the Company’s patient service receivables at December 31
from Medicare and Medicaid:

2012 2011

Medicare 55% 48%
Medicaid 9% 14%

The following table represents the Company’s net patient service revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs as
a percentage of total consolidated nel patient service revenue:

2012 2011
Medicare 64% 63%
Medicaid 5%% 5%

Patient service revenue, nct of contractual allowanses before the provision for bad debts, from the major payor sources,
is as fotlows (in thousands) :

2012 2011
Governument pavors $328,776 $302,649
Commercial payors 142,8]1 132,475
Self-pay 1.814 4.219

8473401 £439.343

“On April 1, 2013, Medicare payments to Vibra were reduced by 2% through the Federal government’s sequesl:ration
initiative. Bascd on the 2012 revenue levels, management estimates the 2% reduction will reduce net patient service
revenue by approximately $3,600,000 for the nine months ending December 31, 2013.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and
cash cquivalents and patient accounts receivable. The Company deposits its cash with large banks. The Company grants
unsecured credit Lo its patients, most of who reside in the service area of the Company’s facilities and are insured under
third-party payor agreements. Because of the geographic diversity of the Company’s facilities and non-governmental
third-parly payors, Medicare and Mcdicaid represent the Company’s primary concentration of credit risk, Cash and cash
equivalent balances on deposit with any one financial institution ate insured to $250,000 per entity for interest-bearing
accounts and an unlimited amount on non-interest-bearing accounts.

11
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has various assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments. The Company estimates that the
carrying value of its cutrent assets, current liabilities and long-term debt approximates their fair value.

Income Taxes

Vibra, its subsidiaries, and Post Acute have elected to be L.LCs for federal income tax purposes. In lieu of corporate

income taxes, the members of a LLC are taxed on its proportionate share of the LLC's taxable income or loss. Therefore,

no provision or liability for federal income 1axes has been provided for in the consolidated balance sheet or consolidated

statement of operations and changes in members® deficit. Vibra has elected to file certain state tax returns at the

partnership level, In 2012 and 2011, Vibra incurred state income and franchise taxes of $622,000 and $602,000, i

respectively. I;

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes using a recognition threshold of more-likely-than not to be ’
|
1

I

sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority. Measurement of the (ax uncertainty occurs if the
recognition threshoid is met, Management delermined that there were no tax uncertainties that met the recognition

threshold in 2012 and 201 1.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in
operating cXpcnscs. ‘ .

“The Company’s federal and state income tax returns are no longer subject 1o examination by federal or state taxing . .
authorities for years before 2009. v

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made 10 the 2011 financial statements to conforms with the 2012 presentation. ;

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition or disclosure through April 26, 2013, the date on which
the financial statements were available to be issued. ;:.

New Accounting Standards
Provision fer Doubtful Collections
The Company adopted new authoritative guidance on patient service revenue, provision for doubtful
collections, and the allowance for doubtful accounts for the year ended December 31, 2012. The objective of ;
the new guidance is to provide financial statement users with greater transparency about a bealth care entity’s

nct patient service revenues and related allowance for doubtful collections.

The new authoritative guidance requires health care entities to make the following changes Lo ils existing
accounting practices:

s  Reclassification of the statement of operations to present the provision for doubtful collections from an
operating expense o a deduction from patient service revenue, nel of contractual allowances and
discounts; :

» Enhanced disclosure about policies for recognizing revenue and the provision for doubtful colleclions by
major payor source of revenne, and qualitative and quantitative information about significant changes in
the allowance for doubtfull accounts related 1o patient accounts receivable, including significant estimates
and underlying assumptions, self-pay write-offs, third-party write-offs, and uninsured transactions; and

» Disclosure of patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounls, by major payor
source.
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

The new authoritative guidance requires retrospective application related to prescntation in the statement of
operations, and prospective application to the disclosure requirements.

As a result of adopting the new authoritative guidance, the Company reclassified its provision for doubtful
collections in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011, decreasing total revenues and
total expenses by $5,332,000. No other reclassifications or modifications have been made to the Company's
2012 financial statements as a result of adoption.

Gooadwill

- The Company adopted new authoritative guidance on testing goodwill for impairtient, which allows companies
1o assess qualitative factors to determine if it is more-likely-than-not that goodwill might be impaired and
whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test required under the current accounting
standards. The adoption did not have a material effect on the Comnpany’s financial statements.

Intangible Assets

The Company adopted new authoritative guidance on testing indefinite-lived intangible assets other than
goodwill for impairment, which allows companies to assess qualitative factors to determine if it is more-likely-
than-nol that indefinitc-lived intangible assets might be impoired and whether it is necessary to perform further
impairment testing is nccessary. The adoption did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial

statements. .

2. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

2012 LTACH Acquisitions {Post Acute)

Warm Springs Specialty Hospital of San Antonio, LLC

in August 2012, under the terms of a Purchase Agreement, Warm Springs Specialty Hospital of San Antonio, LLC
{(*“Warm Springs™), a limited partnership, acquired a 26 bed LTACH. Warm Springs leases space within a hospital in

San Antonio, Texas.

Warm Springs acquired the operation from Promise Hospital of San Antonio, Inc. The purchase price of the operations
was allocated Lo the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. The excess of purchase price plus the liabilities assumed
over the assets acquired was recorded to goodwill. The purchase price was negotiated based on management’s
evaluation of future operatiopal performance of the haspital. The results of aperations of the hospital acquired have been
included in the Company s consolidated financial statement since the date of the acquisition.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance, the assets and liabilities of the acquired hospital operations were recorded
at the (air market value as of the date of the acquisition as follows (in thousands):

Purchase price $2,493
Asscts acquired, net ol liabilities assumed 6
Goodwill $2.499

Post Acutc Medical of Hammond, 1L1LC

In December 2012, under the terms of a Purchase Agrcemcnt, Post Acute Medical of Hammond, LLC (*Hammond™), a
limited partnership, acquired a 40 bed freestanding LTACH including related land and building for $10,500,000
including closing costs. The acquisition was fully funded from (he proceeds of the sale and leaseback of the [and and
building from MPT of Hammond, LLC and debt related to the acquisition (Note 7). The related lease is classified as an

operating lease.
13
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Post Acote and MPT of Hammond, LLC formed Post Acule Medical at Hammond, LLC to own the operations of the

-hospital in ffammond, Lovisiana. MPT Hammond Hospital, LLC contributed $2,000,000 for a 25% interest in

Hammond. Post Acute is the 75% general partner.

Hammond acquired the operation [rom Specialty L'TCH Hospital of Hammond, LLC, The purchase price of the
operations was allocated 1w the assets acquired and the liabilitics assumed. The excess of purchase price plus the
Jiabililies assumed over the assets acquired was recorded to goodwill. The purchase price was negotiated based on
management’s evaluation of future operational performance of the hospital. The results of operations of the hospital
acquired have heen included in the Company’s consolidated flnancial statements since the date of the acquisition,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance, the assets and liabilities of the acquired hospital operations were recorded
at the fair market value as of the datie of the acquisition as follows {in thousands):

Purchase price $4,880
Less assets acquired, nct of liabilities assumed {1,590

Goodwill 33,290

2011 L,TACH Acguisition

Desoto, TX

In July 2011, under the tcrms of a Purchase Agreement, Vibra acquired a newly consiructed 40 bed freestanding L.TACH
including related land and building for $13.025 million including closing costs. The acquisition was fully funded from
the proeeeds of a sale and leascback of the land and building from MPT. The related lease is classified as an operating

lease.

Vihra and MPT tormed a limited partnership (the “Desoto Partnership”) to own the operations of the new hospital. MPT
contributed $2.5 million of 7% preferred equity for a 25% interest in the Desoto Partnership. A Vibra afiiliate is the
75% general pariner. The Vibra affiliate contributed a purchase option and certain costs incurred in connection with the
acquisition and liccnsure of the facility. The Vibra affiliate also receives a 7% return on its conlribution of the costs

incurred.

The preferred equity contribution, along with a $2.5 million loan provided by MPT, are to be used for working capital
during the hospital start up. The foan is for seven years and is payable intcrest only for two years before amortizing over
the final five years, . The loan bears interest at 10.5%. At December 31. 2012 and 2011, nothing was drawn on the $2.5

million loan.
In connection with the acquisition, the Desoto Partnership entered into a non-compete agreement with physicians who
were part owners of the scller. The non-compete term is for three years and requires six semi-annual payments of

$75,000 that began August [, 2011. Another part-owner of the seller received a $250,000 note as part of the purchase,
The 5% seller’s note is payable monthly over 60 months.

Vibra recorded goodwi!l of $1,554,000 in the transaction consisting of the cosls to maintain its purchase option.

14
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VIBRA ITEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES T0O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ycars nded December 31, 2012 and 2011

2011 LTACH Sale

Dallas/Desolo Transaction

Tn December 2011, under the terms of a Purchase and Sale Agreement, Vibra sold certain tangible assets of its Dallas
LTACH io Lifecare Hospitals of North Texas, LP (Lifecare), an affiliate of an unrelated national operator of LTACH
hospitals. The sale price was $10.9 million. The price was payable $5.9 million at closing and $5 million in six
quarterly instalimenis of $833,333 beginning March 1, 2012, Vibra recorded a gain of $6,031,000 on the transaction as

detailed in the table below (in thousands):

Sale price _ 510,900
Financing and other transaction costs (529)
Reserves for note receivable (4,167)
Deferred rent write-off and other non-cash credits 1,328
Assets transferred, net of lisbilities (1.503)
Net gain on sale 3 6031

As shown in the table the remaining note receivable of $4,167,000 (after the $833,000 payment received on March 1,
2012) has been reserved and will be recognized as a gain on a cash basis. In 2012, the Company received two
instal)ment payments tolaling $1.667,000 which were recorded as a gain on the transfer of operations. Life Care is
currently in bankruptey and is in default on the note, thercfore, the collectability of the nole is uncertain. The remaining

balance of $2,500,000 remains fully reserved.

Simultaneously with the closing of the sale of certain assets of the Dallas LTACH, Vibra Specialty Hospital of Dallas,
LLC, the Dallas operating entity {*Vibra Dailas™), vacated its existing hospital space and relocated to the Desoto location
and merged into the Desato Partnership. Lifecare, which had a LTACH hospital less than one mile away, moved that
LTACH into the previously occupied Vibra Dallas space. Vibra Dallas is operating the Desoto hospital, which opened
for patients in December 201 | and continues to be owned 75% by Vibra as the managing member and 25% by MPT as a
limited member. The purpose of the transaction was to achieve the gain, move to a less competitive location, and to
climinate a costly LTACH demonstration period start up at the Desoto location.

2011 LTACH Acquisition (Post Acute)

New Braunfels. TX

In September 2011, under the terms of a Purchase Agreement, Post Acute Medical New Braunfels, LLC (“New
Braunfels™) acquired a 40-bed freestanding LTACH including related land and building for $10 million including closing
costs. The acquisition was fully funded from the proceeds of a sale and Jeaseback of the Jand and building from MPT of
New Braunfels, L1L.C (“MPT New Braunfels™). The relaled lease is classified as an operating lease.

Post Acule and MPT New Braunfels formed 2 limited partaership to own the operations of the new hospital. MPT
conlributed $1.4 million for a 25% interest in New Braunfels. Post Acute is the 75% general partaer.

New Braunfels acquired the operation from Hill Country Specialty lospital, LLC. The purchase price of the operations
was allocated to the net assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. The excess of purchase price plus the liabilities
assumed over the assets acquired was recorded to goodwill. The purchase price was negotiated based on management's
evalvation of future operational performance of the hospital. The resuits of operations of the hospital acquired have been
included in the Company’s consolidated financial statement since the date of the acquisition.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance, the assets and liabilities of the acquired hospital were recorded at the fair
market value as ol the date of the acquisition as follows (in thousands):

Purchase price $1,028
"Less assets acquired, net of liabilities assumed : {958)
Goodwill $3,556
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,2012

Direct Under .
Ownership  Capital Leases Total
Land & improvements $ 2,826 $ - $ 2.826
Building 5,185 17.432 22,617
Leaschold improvements 10,144 - 10,144
Furniture and equipment 16.263 5.06 21.329
34,418 22,498 56,916
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 13.408 8.767 22,175
Total A $21,010 $13,731 $34.741
December 31, 2011
Direct Under
Ownership Capital Leases Total
Land & improvements $ 2,695 $ - $ 2,695
Building _ 5,185 17,418 22,603
Leasehold improvements 6,356 166 6,522
Furniture and equipment _ 10,721 6.622 17,343
24,957 24,206 49,163
Less accurnulated depreciation and amortization 12,996 5.649 18,645
Total $11.961 $18,557 $30.518

Depreciation expense was $3,523.000 in 2012 and 33,554,000 in 2011,

The Company has a commitment from Heaithcare REIT to fund $3.5 million of seismic upgrades and interior
renovations to its Kentticld hospital, which is expected to be completed in 2014 (see Footnole 7).

4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company adopled FASB professional guidance regarding goodwill and other intangible assets. Under this
professional guidance, goodwill and ether intangible assels with indefinite Jives are not subject to periodic amortization
but are instead reviewed annually as of December 31, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. These reviews
require the Company to estimate the fair value of its identified reporling units and compare those estimates against the
related carrying values. In July 2011, the Company recorded $1,554,000 of goodwilf in connection with the acquns;tmn
of the DeSoto hospital (sce Footnote 2}, In 2012, Post Acute recorded $5,789,000 of goodwill in connection with
acquisitions of hospitals in San Antonio and Hammond, and in 2011 Post Acute recorded $3,556,000 of goodwill in
connection with the acquisition of the hospital in New Braunfels (see Footnote 2). The following table summarizes
goodwill and intangible assets (in thousands): '
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VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

December 31,

2012 2011
Goodwill $£43.891 $£38.102
CONs/icenses $ 6,420 $ 6,420

Non-compete agreement (nct of accumulated

amortization of $305,000 in 2012 and $220,000

in 2011} 620 905
Lease acquisition costs (net of accurmulated :

amortization of $24,000 in 2012 and

$7,000 in 2011} 226 243
lntangible assets 3 7.266 3 7568

The CONs/licenses have not been amortized as they have indefinite lives. The non-compete agreement was part of the
negotiated purchase of the Progressive and DeSoto hospitals and is being amortized over the terms of the agreements.
Amottization expense was $285,000 and $197,000 in 2012 and 201 1, respectively. Lease acquisition cost was part of the
negotiated acquisition of the DeSoto hospital and is being amortized as an increase to rent expense over the term of the
lease. No impairment Josses were recognized during 2012 and 2011,

5. DEPOSITS AND OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS

In December 2010, Vibra paid $1 million for a 20% ownership interest in the operations of Life Line Hospital,
Wintersville, Ghio (Life Line), Life Line is a physician owned LTACH. Cumulative Josses are recorded as a reduction
in the investmeat. In August 2012 the Company entered into an unsecured promissory note receivable with LTAC
Investors, LLC (the majority partner in the Life Line Hospital) in connection with a settiement agreement for the
repayment of costs paid on behalf of the hospital, The note is in the amount of $874,000. Principal and interest is
payable over a term of 36 months at an annual interest rate of 9.0%. The principat balance at December 31, 2012, was

$788,000.

Vibra Healthcare entered into a joint venture agreement to develop, own and manage a 60-bed rehab hospital (IRF) in
Ohio with Summa Health System. In exchange for development services and for funding $3.6 million for start-up costs,
Vibra received a 48% ownership interest in the joint venture. The rehab hospital opened in January 2012.

Deposits and other long term assets consist of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

2012 2011
Life Line invesiment $ 281 § 447
Life Line note receivable 788 -
Summa Rehab investment 2,177 1,855
Other long term assets 2474 2.655
Total $5.720 $4957

6. REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

On June 1, 2010, the Company entered into a revolving credit facility with MidCap Financial (MidCap). Interest was
payable monthly at the rate of the 30 day LIBOR plus 4.125% with a2 LIBOR floor 0l 2.50%. In February 2012, the
interest rate of the credit facility was adjusted te LTBOR plus 3.0% with a 2.0% LIBOR floor {5.0% at December 31,
2012), and the maturity was extended from January 70!4 to February 2015. The {oan is secured by a first position in the
Company’s accounts receivable through iatercreditor agreements with MPT and HCN. Up to $60 million can be
borrowed based on a formuls of qualifying accounts receivable, The Company is subject to various financial and non-
financial covenants under the credit facility, A default in any of the MPT and HCN note and lease terms will also
consutute a default under the credit facility. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the debt outstandmg on the revolver was

2,146,000 and $37,989,000, respectively.
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VIBRA HEALTIICARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

On June 1, 2010, PAM entercg into a revolver from MidCap Financial. Interest is payabls monthly at the rate of the 30
day LIBOR plus 4.123% with a LIBOR tloor of 2.50% (6.625% at December 31, 2612). The loan is secured by a first
pasition in Post Acute’s aecounts reccivable through intercreditor agreements with MPT. Up to $15 million can be
borrowed based on a formula of qualifying accounts receivable. Post Acute is subject to various financial and non-
financial covenants under the credit facility, A default in any of the MPT note and lease terms will also constitute a
detault under the credit facility, The revolver malures on Janvary |, 2014, At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the debt
outstanding on the revolver was $9,969,000 and $4,135,000, respectively.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT
The components of long-terny debt are shown in the following table (in thousands):

December 31.

2012 2011
MPT 10.25% hospital scquisition notes $ 15,429 $17.,762
HCN — $21.08 million term loan 15,224 13,823
MidCap term loans — PAM 4,200 3,000
MPT $4.6 million term {oan ~ Dallas 1,108 2,213
MPT $4.8 million terin loan — Portland 936 2,028
MPT $2.0 million term loan — PAM — New Braunfels 2,000 2,000
MPT $2.5 miliion term loan — PAM ~ Hammond 2,490 -
HON LTACH acquisition loan 1,449 2,778
HCN convertible note 20,000 20,000
HCSH nofe payablc — PAM o 976 1,114
Siemens note payable (loan 1) - PAM 895 -
Siemens nate payable (loan 2) — PAM 1,294 -
Other 1,043 710
67,061 65,428
Less current maturilies 8.811 1,738
$58.250 $£5769

The MPT hospital acquisition notes were interest only at 10.25% through June 2007, and then amortizable over the next
17 years with a final maturity in 2024. Substantially all of the agsets of Vibra and its subsidiaries that lease property from
MPT, as well as Vibra's membership interests in those subsidiaries, secure the MPT note. In addition the majority
member of Vibra, an affifiated company owned by the majority member and Vibra Management, LL.C, have jointly and
severally guaranteed the notes payable to MPT, although the obligation of the majority member ig limited to $5 million
and his membership interest in Vibra. A default in any of the MPT lease terms will also constitute a default under the
notes. In December 2010 and in July 2011, Vibra and MPT agreed to amendments that require additional principal

payments as follows: .

January 2011 to December 2013 $60,000/month
August 2011 to December 2012 $68,966/month
January 2013 i $887,578
January 2014 $840,000

On Junc 1, 2010, the Company refinanced & $16 million term loan on the Kenifield Hospital with 2 $17.5 million term
loan with HCN. The term loan matures on June 1, 2020, and bears interest at 9.5% with a 0.25% annual escalator,
Monthly principal payments are required based on a 15-ycar amortization schedule. The proceeds of the HCN term loan
at closing were $14 million, which was used to pay off the existing term loan and for closing costs. The additional $3.5
million is being used to finance a building refurbishment that commenced in 2011. The term loan contains cross default
provisions with Vibra's mastcr lease with HCN. The term loan is secured by a mortgage lien against the Kentfield
LTACH real estate, and is also guaranteed by Vibra. 1n May 2012, the term loan was increased to $21.05 million to
cover Lhe cost of expanded renovations.

18

ATTACHMENT 39
s




[P T AR I SR T . P i

" VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

In September 2011, Post Acute entered into two term loans with MidCap totaling $3,000,000. in August 2012, Post
Acute entered into an additional $2,500,000 term loan with MidCap totaling $2,500.00. Interest al a rate of LIBOR plus
4.125% with a LIBOR floor of 2.50% (6.625% at December 31, 2012}, is payahle monthly throngh December 2011,
Thereafter, thirty three equal monthly principal and interest payments are due starling in January 2012 and ending in
September 2014. The term loans are secured by the accounts receivable of Post Acute.

The MPT term loans for Dallas and Portland reach final maturity in 2013 and bear interest at the greater of 10.5% or the
one-month ULS. Treasury obligation plus 5.5% (10.5% at December 31, 2012). Each loan was payable interest only until
October 1, 2009, with the principal amortized over the final 48 months of the loan term. The loans are secured by (a) a
security interest in Vibra's equipment and other personal property (other than accounts receivable) at the Portland and
Dallas facilities; (b) the guaranty of Vibra and Senior Real Estate Holdings L1.C and Vibra Management, LLC (affiliates
of Vibra); and (c) the pledge of Vibra’s ownership interest in the respective LLC operators of the Portland and Dallas

facilities.

In September 2011, in connection with the acquisition of the New Braunfels hospital, Post Acute entered into a
promissory note with MPT New Braunfels Hospital, LLC for $2,000,000. Interest at a rate of 10.50% per annum is
payable monthly throngh September 2012. Thereafter, monthly principal and interest payments are due beginning in
October 2012 and ending in Seplember 2017. The promissory note is secured by New Braunfel’s operations.

In December 2012, in connection with the acquisition of the Hammond hospital (see Note 2), Post Acute entered into a
promissory note with MPT Hamimond Hospital, LLC for $2,490,000. Tnlerest, at a rate of 12.0% per annum, is payable
monthly through November 2014, Thereafier, monthly principal and interest payments of $55,389 are due starting
December 2014 and ending in November 2019. The promissory note is secured by Hammond's operations.

In connection with the Oclober 2010 acquisition of three LTACLSs, Vibra assumed a $13 million term foan with HCN in
the acquisition of three hospitals from Progressive. At closing, HCN released $4,892.000 in Vibra lease deposit escrow
funds to be used to reduce the loan principal 1o $8,108,000. In December 2010, Vibra paid an additional $4 million in
principal using availablc funds under the MidCap revolver. The {oan bears interest at 9% with 0.25% annual rate
increases and is being amortized over 3 years. The loan is cross defaulted with Vibra’s master lease and other
obligations to HCN, is guaranteed by the guarantors of Vibra’s master lease to HON, and is secured by the security of the
Vibra master lease to HCN, as well as a leaschold mortgage against Vibra’s interest in the leased property under the
master lease.

In December 2010, Vibra closed on a $20 million convertible, unsecured note with HCN. The note is convertible at
HCN’s option into 9.8% of the membership interests of Vibra Healthcare, LLC and includes certain anti-dilutive
retroactive and automatic conversion features. The note matures on December 31, 2025, with interest payable semi-
annually at 7%. The proceeds of the note were distributed to Vibra’s members. At closing, Vibra was required to use $4
million of its borrowing availability on the MidCap revolver to pay down the HCN LTACH acquisition loan. Beginning
September 1, 2011, and for five years thereafter, HCN has an exclusive right of first refusal to develop, own and lease
any hospitals the Company acquires or constructs. HCN also received consent rights on certain material ownership and
governance transactions.

In September 20] 1, Post Acute eniered into a note payable with the seller of the New Braunfels hospital for $1,114,000.
Quarterly principal and interest payments at a rale of .10% per annum are due starting in January 2012 and ending in
October 2021. The note is secured by certain equipment of Post Acute.

1n March 2012, Post Acute entered into a note payable with Siemens (loan 1) for $1,030,000. Monthly principal and
interest payments of $20.350 are due starting April 2012 and ending in March 2017. Interest on the note payable is
6.95%. The note payable is secured by certain cquipment of Post Acule.

In May 2012, Post Acule entered into a note payable with Siemens (loan 2) for $1.435,000. Monthly principal and
interest payments of $28,725 are due starting Junc 2012 and ending in May 2017, Interest on the note payable is 7.46%.
The note payable is secured by certain equipment of Post Acule.

The Company’s loan agreements include certain financial and operating covenants. The Company was in compliance
with these covenants at Dccember 31, 2012 and 201 1. Substantially all Ioans and leases contain cross defaults.
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Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as folfows (in thousands):

December 31

2013 $ 88Ii
2014 5,050
2015 4,853
2016 5.186
2017 5,202
Thercafter 37.959

$ 67,061

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entercd into agreements with Vibra Management, LLC and Lone Star Healthcare, LLC (companies
affiliated through common ownership) to provide management services to each hospital. The services include
information system support, legal counsel, accounting/tax, hunaan resources, program development, quality management
and marketing oversight. The agreements call for a management fee equal to 2% to 4% of net patient service revenue,
and are Tor an initial term of five years with automatic one-vear renewals. In addition, Lone Star reimburses Vibra for
costs associated with billing services provided to Warm Springs, which amounted to $618,000 in 2012 and $560,000 in
2011. Management fee expenses amounted o $11,276,000 in 2012 and $9,502,000 in 2011. Management fees payable,
net of fees receivable, were $1,639,000 and 3263,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These amounts are
included in accounts payable ~ affiliates in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

In November 2010, the Company entered into a Master Equipment Leasing Agreement with Vibra Leasing Company,
LLC, to lease cquipment (o its subsidiary hospitals. The Icases have a term of 3-5 years, an interest rate commensurate
with industry market rates, and provide for a fair-market-value buyout option. in 2012 and 2011, the Company incurred
costs of $1,577,000 and $1.210,000, respectively for these leases, which included rent payments, shipping costs and
taxes. Vibra Leasing Company is owned by the members of Vibra Healthcare. The leases are classified as operating

leases.
9. OPERATING LEASES

MPT 2006 Leases — Portland and Dallas

Tn August and September 2006, Vibia entered into two triple-net long-term real estate operating leases with MPT
relating to the acquisition of LTACHSs under development in Dallas, Texas, and Portland, Oregon. Each lease is for an
initial term of 15 years and contains renewal provisions at Vibra’s option for three additiona) five year terms. On
February 1, 2009, Vibra purchased a tract of land adjacent to its Dallas hospital for $421,200 The purchase was funded
by MPT under the existing operating lease. The base rate at commencement is celculated at 10.50% of MPT’s adjusted
purchase price (“APP”). Beginning January 1, 2008, and each Januacy | thereafter, the base rate increases by an inflator
of the greater of 2.5% or the increase in the Consumer Price Index (“CPT"). The lease rate for the Portland Hospital was
12.4% of APP in 2012.

In December 2011, Vibra sold certain tangible assets of its Dallas hospitel to Lifecare Hospitals of North Texas, LP. The
operating entity for the Dallas hospital vacated the existing hospital space and relocated to a location in Desoto, Texas.
Under the terms of an assignment of lease, the existing l,ease with MPT was partially terminated and assigned to Lifecare

(see Naotc 2),
As required by the terms of the lease, on April 1, 2009, Vibra began making deposils to a capital improverment reserve,

currentiy at an annual rate of $108,000 fos the Portland hospital, which is the only hospital still covered ander the MPT
2006 lease. The reserve may be used to fund capital improvements and repairs as agreed to by the parties.
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MPT 2006 J.eases ~ Post Acute ‘ :
In December 2006, Post Acute entered into three triple-net long-term real estate operating leases with MPT relating to

the WSRF asset acquisition. Each lease is for an initial term of 15 years and containg renewal provisions at Post Acute’s
option for three additional five year terms. The base ratc at commencement is calculated at 10.5% of MPTs APP.
Beginning January 1, 2008, the base rate increases by an inflator of the greater 0f 2.5% or the increase in the CP1L. The
lease rate was 12.4% of APP in 2012.

As required by the tcrms of the lease, on January 1, 2008, Post Acute began making deposits to a capital improvement
reserve at an annual rate of $263,000. The reserve may be used to fund capital irnprovements and repairs as agreed to by

the parties.

The San Antonio hospital land is Jeased from a foundation under a triple net lease that expires in November 2061. The
lease has monthly payments of $28,000 and is subject to an escalator every three years based on the change in the

consumer price index.

MPT 2008 I.ease - Southeastern Michigan

In May 2008, Vibra entered into a triple-net, long-term real estate operating lease with MPT relating to the acquisition of
a 220 bed LTACH in Lincoln Park, Michigan. The lease is for an initial tern of 15 years and contains renewal provisions
at Vibra's option for three additional five year terms. The base rate at commencement was calculated at 10.50% of
MPT’s APP. Beginning January !, 2009, and each January | thereafter, the base rate increases by an inflator of the
greater of 2.5% or the increase in the CPT. The lease rate was 11.66% of APP in 2012.

As required by the terms of the lease, on April 1, 2009, Vibra began making deposits to a capital improvement reserve,
currently at an annual rate of $81,300. The reserve may be used to fund capital improvements and repairs as agreed to by
the parties.

MPT 2011 Lease — Desoto
In July 2011, Vibra entered into a triple-net. fong-term real estatc operating lcase with MPT relating to the acquisition of

a newly constructed 40-bed LTACH in DeSoto, Texas. The leasc is for an initial term of 15 years and contains renewal
provisions at Vibra’s option for three additional five year terms. The base rate at commencement is caleulated at 10.50%
of MPT's APP. Beginning January 1, 2013, and each Japuary 1 thereafter, the base rate increases by an inflator
commensurate with the increase in CPl. The lease rate was 10.5% of APP in 2012,

As required by the terms of the lease, beginning January 1, 2014, Vibra is required (o make deposits to a capital
improvement reserve, currently at an annual rate of $80,000. The reserve may be used to fund capital improvements and

repairs as agreed to by the parties.

MPT 2011 Lease ~ Post Acute

Post Acute eatered into a triple-net long-term real estate operating lease with MPT relating to the acquisition of the New
Breaunfels hospital. The lease is for an initial term of 15 years and contains renewal provisions at Post Acute’s option for
three additional five year terms, The base rate at commencement is calculated at 10.5% of MPT’s APP. Beginning
January 1, 2013, the base rate increases by an inflator of the increase in CPI. The lease rate was 10.8% of APP in 2012,

As required by the terms of the leasc, on January 1, 2013, Post Acute is required to make deposits to a capital
improvemen! reserve at an annual rate of $80,000 per year. Starting January 1, 2014, the rate will increase to the greater
of 2.5% or the increase in CP1 at the beginning of cach year.
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HCN Lecase
The Company entered into a triple-net, long-term real estate operating master lease with HCN for the following

hospitals.:

Three refinanced from MPT in May 2008
Marlton, NJ
Bowling Green, KY
Fresno, CA

Two acquired July 2008
San Diego, CA
San Bernardino, CA

Three (four {ocations) acquired October 2010
Fort Wayne, IN
Crown Point, IN
Beardman, OH

The total Jease base is for $182,100,000. The fease term is for 15 years and is renewable at Vibra’s option for an
additional 13 years. The blended base ratc for 2008 was 9.3 1% of HCN’s APP of the real estate. Each year the rate may
increase 0.23% based on the change in CPl. On October 25, 2010, the HCN Master Lease was amended, adding the
three hospilals acquired from Progressive. and the blended lease rate was adjusted to 9.85%. The annual rate was
increased (o 10.10% and 10.26% on August {, 2011 and 2012, respectively. The Company has an option to purchase the
real cstate at the end of the initial lease term for the greater of APP or fair market vaiue. For each calendar year, Vibra is
required to spend $100,000 in capital cxpenditures per hospital. 11 expenditures in any year do not reach $100,000, the
balance must be depasited in a reserve account to be used for future capital expenditures.

HR Acquisition 2012 Lease — Post Acute )
Post Acute cntered into a triple-net long-term real cstate operating lease with HR Acquisition of San Antonio for a 34

bed rehab hospital in San Antopio, Texas, The lease is for an initiaf term of 15 years and contains provisions at Post
Acute’s option for an additional five year term. The base rate at commencement is $725,000 plus 9.5% of landlord
expenditures in excess of $2,000,000. Beginning March 1, 2013, the rate will increase by 2.5%. The lease requires Post
Acute’s to mainlain a letter of credit in the amount of $300,000.

As required by the terms of the lease, on February 1, 2015, Post Acute is reguired to make deposits io a capital
improvement reserve, at an annual rate of $11,900 for the first year. The annual rate will increase each year at a rate of

2.5%.

PAMW 2012 Lease — Post Acute
Post Acute entered into a long-term real estale operating lease with PAMW, LP for a 40 bed rehab hospital in San

Anfonio, Texas. The leasc is for an initial lerm of 17 years and contains provisions at Post Acute's option for two
additional five year terms. On Aptil 1, 2013, the rate of the lease will increase by 2%.

As required by the terms of the lease, on Aprit 1, 2016, Post Acute is required to make expenditures or deposits to a
capital improvement reserve annually at a rate of $0.20 per square foot leased. '

Southwest General Hospital 2012 Lease — Post Acute

Post Acute entered inlo a long term operating lcasc with Southwest Genera! Hospital, LP for space within the hospital
facility in San Antonio, Texas. The lcasc is for an initial term of 3 years and will sutomatically renew annually, unless
terminatcd by Post Acute or Southwest General Hospital, LP within 45 days prior to the termination of the lease. The
initial term ends on December 31. 2017, The payments for the initial year wili be $37,380 per month and will increase
by the annual increase in the CPI starting January 1, 2014.
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MPT 2012 Lease —Post Acute

Post Acute entered inla a triple-net long-term real estate operating lease with MPT relating to the acquisition of the
Hammond hospital. The lease is for an initial term of 15 years and contains renewal provisions at Post Acute’s option
for three additional five year terms. The base rate at commcncement is calculated at 10.5% of MPT*s APP. Beginning
January 1, 2014, the base rate increases by an inflator of the increase in CP1. The lease rate was 10.5% of APP in 2012,

Carter-Validus I .eases

In October and November 2012, the Company refinanced the remaining MPT 2004 leases {Denver, Colorado and New
Bedford, Massachusetts) with Carter Validus REIT, The Company terminated the MPT leases and acquired the refated
Jand and buildings. The acquisition of the property, a capital improvements holdback of $2,107,000 and iransaction
costs of $1,080.000 vwere fully funded from the proceeds of the sale and leascback of the land and building. The leases
are for an initial term of 16 vears and contain extension options. The initial base reat ratc is 9.5% wiih an annual
increasor of 2.0%. The lease is classified as an operating lease. The company recorded e deferred gain on this
transaction in the amount of $6.077,000, primarily resuiting from the write-ofT of deferred renls on the MPT 2004 leases.

These leases include certain financial and operating covenants. The Company was in compliance with these covenants at
December 31, 2012 and 2011. All loans and leases contain cross defaunlts.

Other Leases
Vibra has also entered into operating leases for outpatient clinics and various equipment, which expire on various dates
through 2016. The Redding, Marlton and San Diego hospitals® land is leased from independent third parties unde1 triple-

net leases, the earliest of which expires in 2028,

Minimum future lease obligations on the operating lcases arc as follows (in thousands):

Post Acute
Vibra Rent Rent Outpaticnt  Equipment
Obligation  Obligation Clinics Leases Land Leases Total
December 31
2013 $ 29,563 $ 9,389 $1,108 $ 4,485 $ 1,509 $ 46,054
2014 29,757 9,530 949 3,536 1,510 45,282
2015 29,956 5,678 866 2,230 1,511 44 24t
2016 30,159 9,764 334 1,102 1,313 42,872
2017 30,366 8.659 116 219 1,514 41,874
Thereafter 201,285 75,617 - - 108,378 385,280

Substantially all of the assets of Vibra and its subsidiaries, as well as Vibra’s membership interests in its subsidiaries,
secure the leases. In addition the majority member of Vibra, an affiliated Company owned by the majority member, and
Vibra Management, LLC have jeintly and severally guaranteed the leases to MPT, although the obligation of the
majority member is limited to $5 million and his membership interest in Vibra. Additionally, HCN has a third mortgage
on the Kentfield real estate as collateral for their lease.

The Company has sublet a floor of its Mariton, NJ hospital to an independent pediatric rehabilitation provider and has
sublet a unit of its Denver hospital to a national provider of psychiatric care. Three other hospitals have entered into
numerous sublease arrangements. These subleases generated rental income of $1,792,000 in 2012 and $2,521,000 in
2011 and are included in other operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes
in members® deficit. The following table summarizes amounts due under subleases (in thousands):

December 3]
2013 $1.329
2014 1,363
2015 : 955
2016 586
2017 601
Thereafter 407
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10. OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

On June 30, 2005, Vibra entcred inlo a triple-net real estate lease with MPT on the Redding, California property. The
lease is for an initial term of 20 years and contains renewal options at Vibra’s option for threc additional five year terms.
Each January L, the base rale increases by the greater 0f 2.65% or by the increase in the consumer price index from the
previous adjustment date. The lease rate was 11.65% of APP in 2011 and 12.0% in 2012, Tn March 2007, Vibra
completed a $2.7 mitlion renovation project that was financed under the lease. In July 2008, Vibra committed to a
$773,000 repovalion project that was financed under the lease in 2009.

The Redding lease does not contain a purchase option. As required by the terms of the lease, in 2009 Vibra began
making quarterly deposits to a capital improvement reserve, currently at an annual rate of $163,000. The terms of the
lease include certain financial and operating covenants. The Company was in compliance with these covenants at
December 31, 2012 and 2011. All loans and leases contain cross defaulis.

Other capital leases consist of equipment financing. The equipment is pledged as collateral for the lease.

The following schedule summarizes the future minimum lease payments under capital eases fogether with the net
minimum lease payments (in thousands):

MPT
December 31 Redding Lease Other Total
2013 § 3,065 £ 967 $ 4,032
2014 ' 3,146 371 3,517
2015 3,229 298 3,527
2016 3,315 29 3,344
2017 3,403 - 3,403
Thereafter ' 28.928 - 28928
Total minimum lease payments ’ 45,086 1,665 46,751
Less amounts representing interest 23.804 172 23.976
Present value of nct minimum lease payments $21,282 $1,494 $22.775

Substantially, all of the assets of Vibra and its subsidiaries, as well as Vibra’s membership interests in its subsidiaries,
secure the MPT leases. In addition the rmajority member of Vibra, an affiliated Company owned by the majority member,
and Vibra Management, LLC have jointly and severally guaranteed the leases to MPT, although the obligation of the
majority member is limited to 5 million and his membership interest in Vibra,

11, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that have arisen in the ordinary course of its business and have

not been finally adjudicated (including claims against the hospitals under prior ownership). In the opinion of
management, the cutcome of these actions will not have a material effect on consolidated financial position or results of

operations of the Company.
California Seismic Upgrade

For carthquake proleclion, California required hospitals to receive an approved Structural Performance Category 2
(“SPC-27) to maintain its license. All of the Company’s California hospitals are SPC-2 compliant. As a result, the
hospitals meet the requirements for, and have been granted, an extension to meet the non-structural perfortnance
Category 3 compliance through January 1, 2030.
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Contingencies

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local governments. Compliance
with thesc laws and regulations is subject to future government review and interpretation as well as regulatory actions
unknows or unasserted at this time. Government activity continues to increase with respect to investigations and
allegations concerning possible violations by healthcare providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which
could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties as wel! as significant repayments for patient services

previously billed.

The Company is cusrently subject to two separate federal investigations involving certain of its hospitals. Management
believes it has fully complied with all applicable laws and reguiations regarding the operations at these hospitals. The
results of these federal investigatians cannol be determined at this time.

12. RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

In November 2004, the Company began sponsorship of a defined contribution retirement savings plan for all eligible
employees. Employces may elect to defer up (o the federal maximum each year. For employee contributions of up to 3%
of their salary, the Company has historically matched 25%. The cmployees vest in the employer contributions over a
five-year period beginning on the employee’s hire datc. The yxpense incurred by the Company related to this plan was
$942,000 in 2012 and $730,000 in 2011.

13. MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Post Acute Medical, LLC (“Post Acute”) and Vibra Specialty Hospital of Dallas, LLC (“DeSoto™) are consolidated
entities of the Company which have non-Vibra partners. The non-controlling interest is included in members’ deficit on
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The following table reconciles the members” equity of these consolidated
non-controlling interests at December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

DeSoto Post Acute
Non-controlling  Non-controlling

Interest Interest Consolidated
Beginning members’ equity — January 1, 2011 $ - § 66 $ 66
Share of net income — 2011 (454) 730 276
Contributions from members —20] 1 2,500 1,400 3,900
Distributions to members — 2011 - (1.150) (1.150)
Ending members’ equity ~ December 31,2011 2,046 1,046 3,092
Share of net income — 2012 ’ 352 533 885
Contributions from members — 2012 - 2,000 2,000

- Distribution to members — 2012 - {400} {400)

Ending members’ equity — December 31, 2012 $2,398 $3.179 $.5.577

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

FASB guidance regarding disclosure about segments of an cnfcrprise and refated information establishes standards for
reporting information ahout operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas

and major customers.

The Company’s segments consist of {i} IRFs, (3i) LTACHSs, and (iii) Post Acute. The accounting policies of the segments
are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Company evaluates performance
of the segments based on loss from operations.
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The following table summarizes selected financial data for the Company’s reportable segments (in thousands):

2012
Net patient service ravenue
Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense
Depreciation and ameortization
Deferred rent :
Total assets
Purchagses of property and equipment
Goodwilt

2011
Net patient service revenue
Income (loss) from operations
Inlerest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred rent
Total assets
Purchases of property and equipment
Goodwill

15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

TRF LTACH Post Acute Other Total
£100.491 $283,899 $89,011 $ - $475,401
15,775 23,974 808 (21,152) 19,405
29 3,723 1,284 5,195 12,251
337 3,105 791 542 4,715
- 3.875 3,188 - 7,063
34,292 113,023 38,389 23,106 208,810
393 1,177 2,722 %0 4,383
16,722 17,828 9,344 - 43,891
IR¥ LTACH Post Acute Other Total
$96,217 $282,037 361,089 $ - $439,343
15,664 16,769 1,742 (21,473 12,702
38 5,917 846 6,156 12,957
317 3,065 268 482 4,132
- 9,942 2,406 - 12,348
32,864 114,389 19,536 16,281 183,070
176 1,363 174 22 2,338
16,722 17.824 3,556 - 38,102

FASB guidance establishes standards for reporting information about the fair value of financial instruments. Fair value is
defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
markec participants at the measurement datc.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (in

thousands):

Assels,
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities:
Revolving credit facility
Long-term debt
Obfigations under capital leases
Total liabilities

2012 2011

Carrying Carrying
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
$ 21,163 $ 21,165 $ 7437 § 7437
~$ 52,115 $ 52,115 $ 42,124 $ 42,124
67,061 67,061 65,428 65,428
-22.775 22.712 24.030 29576
$141.951  $146.888  $131,582  $137.128

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for financial instruments disclosed at fair value.
‘There have been no changes in methodologies use,d_ at December 31, 2612 and 2011,

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrving value approximates fair value becauose of the short maturity of these financial

instruments.

Revolving credit facility, long-term debt, and obligations under capital Jeases: Valued based on current rates offered for
similar issues with similar security terms and malurities, or estimated using a discount rate that a market participant

would demand.
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16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 27, 2013, Vibra entered into an interim management agreement with Complex Care Hospital of Idaho (CCH))
to manage a 60-bed long term care hospital located in Meridian, Idaho. CCHI is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LCI
Holdeo, LL.C, the parent company of LifeCare Holdings, Inc. (L.ifeCare), of Plano, Texas, which is in bankruptey.
Under the interim managerent agreement, Vibra assumed day-to-day operations of the hospital on April 3, 2013. Vibra
and LifeCare also executed an agreement for Vibra to acquire substantially all of the assets of CCHI, subject to
resolution of certain conditions and Bankruptey Court approval.

In March 2013, Post Acute amended its $15,000,000 revolver and term loans with MidCap. The amendment increased
the revolver to a $20,000.000 credit facility and changed some covenant requirements. The term loans were refinanced
“over 4 five year term and the iaterest rate was increased to 7.625%.

On April 24, 2013, an affiliate of Vibra entered into an asset purchase agreement to acquire 16 hospitals (15 LTACHs
and 1 IRF) and onc skilled nursing facility from Kindred Healthcare, a national provider of post acute heaithcare
services, The purchase price of $187,000,000 will be financed with the accounts receivable revolver, sale leaseback and
term loan financing. Repayment of the financing will be guaranteed by Vibra. The Vibra affiliate will receive
$31,000,000 of net working capital in the transaction. Five of the LTACHs acquired will be operated in a partnership
with Post Acute. Management expects the {ransaction to be immediately accretive to cash flow and income with an
anticipated closing in the second half 0f 2013.

27
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Hollinger Holding Company LLC

Hollinger Holding Company LLC
Balance Sheet prepared on Tax Basis

12/31/2012

Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Members Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity
Hollinger Holding Company LLC
Income Statement

12/31/2012

Taxable Income

Expenses

Income

Balance at Beg of the year
Net Income

Distributions

Net Worth

17,073,055

(17,073,055,

21,500,000.00

0

21,500,000.00

(27,152,455
21,500,000
(11,420,600

(17,073,055
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HEALTH CARE REIT, INC.
4500 Dorr Street, Toledo, Ohio 43615-4040
Phone: (419) 247-2800/ Fax: (419)247-2826

PROJECT APPROVAL LETTER

March 12, 2013

Vibra Healthcare, LLC
4550 Lena Dr., Suite 225
Mechanicsburg, PA 17050

Attention: Mr. Clint Fegan
Chief Financial Officer

Dear Clint:

We understand that Vibra Healthcare, LLC (“Company”) would like Health Care REIT, Inc. (“HCN”) to
acquire the hospitals (individually a “Facility,” and collectively the “Facilities”) described below. The
Facilities will be leased to Vibra Holdings One, LLC (“Tenant”) under the terms set forth in the Amended
and Restated Term Sheet for Master Lease between Company and HCN dated April 23, 2008 (“Term
Sheet”) and the Second Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement between the Tenant and HCN
dated October 25, 2010 (“Master Lease”), with the supplemental information and modifications as set
forth beJow. Capitalized terms not defined in this project approval letter (“Letter”) have the meanings set
forth in the Term Sheet and/or Master Lease.

1. Facility Identification. The Facilities that Vibra proposes HCN acquire and add to the Master
Lease are set forth below (the “Kindred Facilities”). The table sets forth HCN’s allocation of the
Investment Amount (defined herein) for each of the Facilities, to be finalized by HCN and
Company prior to the Closing Date (defined herein).

- R Aflocated
‘Facility Name - - | . m Investment
. and Location - .|, Subtenant/Operato ; ~:| Amount (est.)
Kindred Hospital - A wholly-owned LT
Sacramento subsidiary of the beds (increasing to $33,600,000
Folsom, CA Company or Tenant 58 licensed beds) B
Kindred Hospital - A wholly-owned LTACH, 50 licensed
Springfield subsidiary of the beds $10,100,000
Springfield, IL Company or Tenant
Kindred Hospital Park A wholly-owned LTACH, 47 licensed
View - Central subsidiary of the beds
Massachusetts Company or Tenant $7,100,000
Rochdale, MA
Kindred Hospital - A wholly-owned LTACH, 59 licensed
Charleston subsidiary of the beds and 30 licensed $£17,200,000
Mount Pleasant, SC Company or Tenant SNF beds
Kindred Hospita! - A wholly-owned LTACH, 60 licensed
Richmond subsidiary of the beds $12,000,000
Richmond, VA Company or Tenant
ATTACHMENT 39
Page |

Project Nationals Project Approval Letter 2013_03_12

/)2




Vibra Heulthcare, LLC / Project Nationals
Project Approval Letter

12. Capital Expenditures. During the term of the Master Lease, the Tenant will be responsible for the
costs of all capital repairs and replacements. Tenant shall be required to spend at least $1,500 per
bed per year on capital expenditures for the Facilities, inflated annually by CPI.

13. Boise Facility. As a condition to HCN closing on the acquisition of the Kindred Facilities, Vibra
must add the Boise Facility (defined below) to the Mater Lease.

13.1.  Background. HCN leases a 60-bed LTACH located in Boise, ID (“Boise Facility”) to LCI
Healthcare Holdings, Inc. (“LifeCare®) pursuant to a lease agreement between HCN and
LifeCare (the “Boise Lease”). LifeCare and its affiliates filed petitions in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”) on
December 11, 2012, and are currently operating under protection pursuant to Chapter 11
of the United States Bankruptcy Code (“Bankruptcy Code™). LifeCare desires that HCN
find a replacement operator for the Boise Facility and transfer operations of the Boise
Facility to that replacement operator.

13.2.  Structure. Vibra will work with LifeCare to immediately assume operations of the Boise
Facility on an interim basis, including obtaining any necessary Bankruptcy Court
approval of Vibra’s assumption of the interim operation of the Boise Facility, pending
approval of the Boise Sale (defined below). As early as possible and practicable under the
Bankruptcy Code, Vibra will purchase LifeCare’s assets associated with the Boise
Facility pursuant to a sale under section 363 of the Bankruptcy Code (the “Boisc Sale™),
subject to approval of the Bankruptcy Court. The Boise Sale shall include the assumption
and assignment to Vibra of the Boise Lease and the transfer to Vibra of the Medicare
provider number associated with the Boise Facility. Upon the closing of the Boise Sale
(the “Boise Closing Date”), the Boise Facility will be added to the Master Lease. Vibra’s
acquisition of the Boise Facility will include pre-petition liabilities, which HCN
understands includes a liability of $5,424,662 due to Medicare and $2,614.556 due to
Idaho Medicaid (“Cost Report Liabilities™). HCN and Vibra will work together in good
faith to attempt to reduce the value of the Cost Report Liabilities and establish repayment
plans. If HCN and Vibra are not successful reducing the value of the Cost Report
Liabilities and establishing repayment plans, HCN intends to provide Vibra with a
working capital loan to fund the Cost Report Liabilities. Such working capital loan wil}
have a term of 12 years, an interest rate of 10.0%, 25 basis point annual increasers to the
interest rate beginning in third year of the loan term, and interest only payments for the
first 24 months followed by payments of interest and principal based on a ten year
amortization schedule.

13.3. Estimated Closing Date. Vibra will begin working with LifeCare immediately to replace
LifeCare as the operator of the Boise Facility on an interim basis. HCN estimates the
transfer of operations will be complete by March 21, 2013. The Boise Closing Date will
be mutually determined between HCN, Vibra, LifeCare, and the Bankruptcy Court; HCN
estimates the Boise Closing Date will be on or around June 30, 2013. The actual Boise
Closing Date will be subject to Vibra having adequate evidence that the Boise Facility
has achieved an average length of stay of 25 days for its Medicare patients for the six-
month period prior to closing.

13.4. Base Rent. Base Rent for the Boise Facility will be equal to $1,000,000 per annum for the
first twelve months and $1,200,000 per annum for the subsequent twelve months. Base
Rent will reset to fair market value on the second and fifth anniversaries of the Boise
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Closing Date with a floor of the prior year’s Base Rent. Base Rent determined pursuant to
the fair market value reset on the second and fifth anniversaries of the Boise Closing Date
will be equal to: the total fair market rent amount, less the amount of interest due for the
forward twelve month period to Medicare or under the working capital loan associated
with the Boise Facility and the Cost Report Liabilities, and—for the second anniversary
only—less the amount of principal due for the forward twelve month period to Medicare
or under the working capital loan associated with the Boise Facility and the Cost Report
Liabilities. Following each fair market value rent reset, Base Rent for the Boise Facility
will increase by 2.5% annually.

14. Lakeway Facility. As a further condition to HCN closing on the acquisition of the Kindred
Facilities, Vibra must add the Lakeway Facility (defined below) to the Mater Lease.

14.1.  Background, HCN and an affiliate of Vibra (“Lone Star”) entered into a Master Lease
Agreement on December 31, 2011 (“Lakeway Lease™), for HCN to lease to Lone Star a
vacant 44-bed hospital facility located in Lakeway, TX (“Lakeway Facility™). The
Lakeway Lease was subsequently amended to delay the date that the Lone Star was
estimated to take possession of the Lakeway Facility until July 1, 2013. HCN is currently
marketing the Lakeway Facility for sale to an unaffiliated third party. If HCN does not
enter into a binding purchase and sale agreement (“Sale Agreement”) for the Lakeway
Facility by May 31, 2013, HCN will stop marketing the Lakeway Facility for sale.

14.2.  Addition to Master Lease. If HCN has not entered into a Sale Agreement, on the Closing
Date HCN and Lone Star will terminate the Lakeway [ease and the Lakeway Facility
will be added to the Master Lease. Vibra will be obligated to take possession of the
property by July 31, 2013, and Base Rent will commence for the Lakeway [Facility on
August 1, 2013 (“Lakeway Commencement Date™). If HCN has entered into a Sale
Agreement, but the sale of the Lakeway Facility has not yet closed as of the Closing
Date, HCN and Lone Star will terminate the Lakeway Lease and the Master Lease will
include a requirement that the Lakeway Facility be added to the Master Lease if the Sale
Agreement is terminated for any reason (“Sale Termination™). The Master Lease will
require that [a] the Lakeway Facility be added to the Master Lease within 60 days of such
Sale Termination and [b] the Lakeway Commencement Date will be 90 days from such
Sale Termination. Additionally, HCN will provide a working capital loan to Vibra
beginning on the Lakeway Commencement Date for up to $5,000,000. Such working
capital loan will have a term of 12 years, an interest rate of 10.0%, 25 basis point annual
increasers to the interest rate beginning in third vear of the loan term, and interest only
payments for the first 24 months followed by payments of interest and principal based on
a ten year amortization schedule.

143. Base Rent. Base Rent for the Lakeway Facility will be equal to $1,500,000 per annum for
the first twelve months. Base Rent will increase by 3.0% on the first and second
anniversaries of the Lakeway Commencement Date. Base Rent will reset to fair market
value on the third and sixth anniversaries of the Lakeway Commencement Date with a
floor of the prior year’s rent plus 3.0%. Following each fair market value rent reset, Base
Rent for the Lakeway Facility will increase by 3.0% annually.

15. Additional Facilities. In addition to the Kindred Facilities identified in section 1, Vibra will
acquire leasehold interests in two facilities located in Lafayette, LA, and Tulsa, OK, from the
Seller that were originally owned by RehabCare (“RehabCare Facilities”). The RehabCare
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Facilities will be added to the Master Lease. Base Rent for the RehabCare Facilities will not be
changed from the current amounts and increases set forth in their respective leases once they are
added to the Master Lease.

16. Due Diligence Review. Closing on the acquisition of the Facilities is subject to HCN’s customary
due diligence review, including, but not limited to, review and approvai of the following items:
[1] title policy from a title company selected by HCN; [ii] ALTA survey; [iii] environmental
assessment (including wetlands delineation); [iv] property inspection and soils report; [v] MAI
appraisal; [vi] market study; [vii] certificate of need (to extent required by law), licensure and
reimbursement requirements; [viii] Medicare and Medicaid audit report for the Facilities (if
available); [ix] compliance with laws, including zoning, Stark, anti-kickback, and securities
regulations; [x] historical and pro forma financial statements of the Facilities and for the
Company; [xi] the ownership, structure, capitalization, and control the Tenant, each Subtenant,
and the Manager; [xii] property and liability insurance; and [xiii] legal opinion;

17. - Closing Conditions, HCN’s obligation to close the contemplated Kindred Facilities acquisition is
subject to the following conditions: [i] HCN has approved the Due Diligence in the foregoing; [ii]
all parties have approved, executed and delivered all agreements and instruments necessary or
desirable to consummate the transaction; [iii] the transaction has been approved by HCN'’s Board
of Directors; [iv] no material adverse change has occurred in the financial condition of Tenant,
Facility, or Guarantor; [v] the addition of the Boise Facility to the Master Lease as set forth in
section 11 herein; and {vi] the addition of the Lakeway Facility to the Master Lease as set forth in

section 12 herein.

18. Expected Closing Date. The Closing Date for the acquisition of the Facilities is expected to be
June 30, 2013,

19. Expiration Date. This Letter will expire if not accepted by March 18, 2013.

[ REMAINDER  OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ]
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20.

Confidentiality. Neither party will disclose either the fact or the substance of this Letter, nor the
negotiations between HCN and Company with respect to the particular Facilities contemplated
hereby, except as reasonably necessary to its attorneys, auditors, agents, consultants working on
the transaction, and the Seller, or as required by law.

Acceptance. This Letter may be accepted only by your execution of this Letter and returning the
executed Letter and a deposit in the amount of $100,000.00 (“Facility Deposit”) to HCN by the
Expiration Date. The Facility Deposit will be credited against the 1.0% Transaction Fee at
closing. The Company will reimburse HCN for any out-of-pocket costs in excess of the Facility
Deposit regardless of whether the transaction closes. The executed Letter should be sent to the
attention of Theresa Whetro, Real Estate Specialist, at the address at the top of the first page. This
Letter foregoing is being provided to the Company along with a Term Sheet for Mezzanine Loan
(*Loan Term Sheet™). HCN will only accept this executed Letter and the executed Loan Term
Sheet it they are provided together simultaneously.

Please acknowledge your agreement to the foregoing by signing below.

HEALTH CARE REIT, INC. VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC
' 75 LT
_ Senior Vice President - P 12
Title: Administration and Corporate Secretary Title: Yt
Date:_ March 14, 2013 Date: 3743 /1)
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Exhibit A

Sources and Uses Statement

Sources Amount
HCN Lease Amount $80,000,000
Vibra Funded Closing Costs $550.000
Total Sources $80,550,000
Uses ~ ‘ Amount
Acquisition amount $80,000,000
Landlord legal fees $120,000
Tenant legal fees $50,000
Third party reports $100,000
Transfer taxes* $100,063
Title insurance $103,853
Recording, UCC, escrow fees $£18.,800
HCN investigation expenses $37.500
Transaction fee 0.0% $0
Letter of credit 0.0% 30
Contingency $19.784
Total Uses** $80,550,000

* Transfer tax estimate assumes all taxes split equally between Vibra and Seller.
** Uses in excess of the budget to be funded by the Tenant.
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HEALTH CARE REIT, INC.
4500 Dorr Street, Toledo, Ohio 43615
Phone: (419) 247-2800 / Fax: (419) 247-2826

March 12, 2013

TERM SHEET FOR LOAN

This Term Sheet for Loan (“Loan Term Sheet™) is being provided in conjunction with the Project
Approval Letter (“PAL”) of even date regarding the addition of a portfolio of five facilities to the Second
Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement between the Vibra Holdings One, LLC (“Tenant”) and
HCN dated October 25, 2010 (“Master Lease”). Closing the transaction described in this Loan Term
Sheet is conditioned upon closing the transaction described in the PAL and is subject to all of the
conditions precedent to closing that are set forth in the PAL.

LENDER: Health Care REIT, Inc. and/or one or more of its affiliates (“Lender”
or “HCN”).

BORROWER: Vibra Healthcare 11, LLC (“Borrower”). .

GUARANTOR: Vibra Healthcare, LLC (“Company”), the Tenant and each guarantor

of the Master Lease. All guarantees will be unconditional payment
and performance guarantees and will be joint and several.

LOAN TYPE AND USE
OF PROCEEDS: A mezzanine term loan (“Loan”) will be made available to Borrower
in an aggregate amount not to exceed the Maximum Loan Amount
(defined below) to help fund the Company’s acquisition of a
portfolio of 16 facilities (each a “Facility” or collectively the
“Facilities”) from Kindred Healthcare, Inc. (“Seller”). The Loan will
be funded in a single advance at closing. Proceeds from the Loan
will be used along with proceeds from funding under the Master
Lease and additional borrowings from MidCap Financial, LLC
(“MidCap™) in order to consummate the acquisition of the Facilities
from the Seller. A sources and uses statement for the acquisition of
the Facilities is set forth on Exhibit A.
MAXIMUM LOAN
AMOUNT: $32,000,000.
LOAN TERMS: The following terms shall apply to the Loan.
Term: One hundred aﬁd "fbrty-four ('144). nﬂéhﬂlls;
Commitment Fee: 1.0% of Maximum Loan Amount, payable at closing.
Vibra Mezzanine Loan Term Sheet 2013_03_12 ATTACHNMENI B9
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" Vibra Healthcare, LLC

Term Sheet for Loan

| Interest Rate:

Initial Rate:

12.0%

Annual Inflation

The Interest Rate will increase by 31 basis points each

Adjustment: year on the anniversary of the closing date.
Default Rate: Greater of 18.5% or 2.5% plus the then-applicable
' rate.
Calculation Method: 365/360
Payments: Type: Borrower will pay interest only on the outstanding
‘ Loan balance at the Initial Rate during the first 24
months of the Term. Thereafter,” Borrower will pay
installments of interest at the applicable Interest Rate
and principal based upon a ten year amortization
schedule.
Frequency: Monthly.
Due: First of the month via wire transfer,
Prepayments: The Loan may be prepaid at any time without penalty.
Borrower will be required to use 90% of the proceeds
from any sale of the Facility in Springfield, MA, to
. repay the Loan.
Late Payment Charge: | 5% of the amount then due.
Security: The Loan will be secured by: [i] a first mortgage on

the Facility in Springfield, MA to be acquired by the
Company from the Seller; [ii] a leasehold mortgage
against the Company’s and the Borrower’s interests in
the Master Lease; and [iii] the same security that
secures the Master Lease. Borrower will be permitted
to sell the real estate associated with the Facility in
Springfield, MA, provided that the sale proceeds
exceed $8,000,000. Lender will have a perpetual right
of first refusal to acquire the Facility in Springfield,
MA, as long as the Loan remains outstanding. '

Events of Default:

10 day grace period for monetary defaults, non-
monetary defaults are either immediate or subject to
30 day notice and cure period. The Loan will be cross-
defaulted with the Master Lease, HCN’s mortgage
loan against the Company’s facility in Kentfield, CA,
and the loans provided by MidCap as material
| obligations of the Company.

FINANCIAL COVENANTS:

DUE DILIGENCE REVIEW:

CONDITIONS TO
CLOSING:

Equal to the same financial covenants that pertain to the Company as

set forth in the Master Lease.

Same as identified in the PAL.

Same as identified in the PAL.

Vibra Mezzanine l.oan Term Sheet 2013_03_12
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TRANSACTION COSTS: Borrower is responsible for all transaction costs, including legal
counsel to HCN.

EXPIRATION DATE: This Term Sheet will expire unless accepted by Borrower on or
before March 18, 2013.

ACCEPTANCE: This Term Sheet may be accepted by Borrower only by returning a
fully executed copy to HCN by the Expiration Date. Borrower is
responsible for HCN’s out-of-pocket expenses related to the
transaction if any Loan does not close for any reason other than
default on the part of Lender. The executed Term Sheet should be
sent to Theresa S. Whetro, Real Estate Specialist, at 4500 Dorr
Street, Toledo, Ohio 43615-4040.

The undersigned acknowledges that [i] this Loan Term Sheet does not constitute a commitment by HCN
to enter into any transaction; and [ii] the foregoing terms and conditions are acceptable to HCN subject to

negotiation of the loan documents.

LENDER: BORROWER:
HEALTH CARE REIT, INC. VIBRA HEALTHCARE H1, LLC
. T e
By: IL\&M L "%@Q—{, By: %@// e ZY
Senior Vice President - oy

Title: Administration and Corporate Secretary Title: g

Date of Acceptance: March 14, 2013 Date of Acceptance: 5'/{ 3 /’ }
COMPANY:
VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC
By: et T ™
Title: Y —
Date of Acceptance: 3 /{3/ /%
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Exhibit A

Sources and Uses

HCN Lease Investment

$80,000,000

HCN Mezzanine Loan

$32,000,000

MidCap Revolver Expansion

$43.000,000

MidCap Senior Term Loan $37.000,000
Vibra Equity $0
Total Sources $192,000,000

Uses - , NS
Purchase Price $187.000,000
HCN Lease Closing Costs $550,000
HCN Loan Closing Costs $350,000
MidCap Closing Costs {est.) $1,600,000
Vibra Expenses (est.) $1.000,000
Contingency $1.500.000
Total Uses $192,000,000

Vibra Mezzanine Loan Term Sheet 2013_03_12
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Eimancial

Mr. Clint Fegan

Chief Financial Officer
Vibra Healthcare, LLC
4550 Lena Drive

Mechanicsburg, PA 17055

Dear Mr. Fegan:

Brett Robinson
Managing Director
Portfolio / Operations

MidCap Financial LLC
7255 Woodmont Avenue
Suite 200

Bethesda, MD 20814
301.841.6439

february 1, 2013

We are pleased to advise you that MidCap Financial, LLC (“MidCap Financial”} will consider establishing a
5120 million senior revolving credit facility (the “Senior Facility”) and a $37 million senior term loan {the
“Senior Term Loan”, together the “Facilities”) under the terms and conditions set forth below wth Vibra

Healthcare, LLC (“Borrower”).

The Facilities shall be- used to finance a near-term acquisition, refinance

Borrower’s existing indebtedness and provide for Borrower's ongoing working capital requirements. Please
note that any funding under this proposal is subject to due diligence, legal documentation and credit

* committee approval.

Borrower

Vibra Healthcare, C

Administrative Agent:

MidCap Financial, LLC {“MidCap Financial”}

Lenders:

MidCap Financial and such other banks and financial institutions as may be
arranged by MidCap Financial

Facility:

$120 million Revolving Line of Credit [the “Revolver”)

Commitment Amount:

The maximum |oan amount under the Revolver {the “Commitment
Amount”} shall be §120 million. The amount available to Borrower under
the Revolver at any one time shall be based upon the Availability {as
described below). .

Availability:

Availability under the Revolver shall be an amount up to eighty five percent
{85%) of the Net Collectable Value (defined below) of Borrower’s accounts
receivable due from eligibie direct and third-party payors up to 180 days
past the applicable bill date. The Net Collectable Value of Borrower's
accounts receivable is the amount Borrower bills such payors less bad debt,

contractual allowances and other standard ineligibles, which shall be

Please initial upon approval
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determined by Administrative Agent based on its due diligence.

Minimum Balance:

Borrower shall maintain a minimum drawn balance under the Revolver of
no less than 50% of Availability (as defined above).

Term:

36 months

Interest and Fees:

Interest on the outstanding balance of the Revolver shall be payable
monthly in arrears at an annual rate of reserve-adjusted, 80-day LIBOR plus
400 basis points, reset monthly. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of
the actual number of days elapsed in a 360 day year. Collections of cash by
Lenders, under the Revolver shall be credited to Borrower’s obligations
thereunder on a daily basis, subject to three business clearance days.

Borrower shall pay Administrative Agent a collateral management fee of
$100,000 per annum on the outstanding balance of the Facility. The
collateral management fee shall be payable monthly in arrears.

Borrower shall pay Lenders an unused line fee equal to 0.50% per annum of
the average unused portion of the Facility. The unused line fee shall be
payable monthly in arrears.

Borrower shall pay Lenders a fully earned, non-refundable origination fee of
0.75% of the Commitment Amount, due and payable in full upon the
funding of the initial loans under the Facility.

Prepayment:

If the Revolver is prepaid prior to the end of the Term, Borrower shall pay to
Lenders a fee as compensation for the costs of being prepared to make
funds available to Borrower throughout the Term equal to an amount
determined by multiplying the Commitment Amount by 3.0% in the first
year, 2.0% in the second year and 1.0% thereafter. In addition, Lenders
shall have a right of first refusal to provide any financing the proceeds of
which are used to refinance the Facility. The additional availability shall be
prepayable at any time.

Facility: $37 million Senior Term Loan {the “Senior Term Loan”)
Loan Amount: $37 million
Term: 36 months

Interest Rate:

Interest on the outstanding balance of the Revolver shall be payable
monthly in arrears at an annual rate of reserve-adjusted, 30-day LIBOR
(subject to a 1.0% floor} plus 550 basis points, reset monthly. Interest shall
be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed in a 360 day

year.

Please initial upon approval
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Amortization:

$6.0 million per year.

In the first year the Term Loan shall amortize by $300,000 per month for the
first 3 months and $600,000 per month for months 4 through 12.
Thereafter, the Term Loan shall amortize by $500,000 per month.

Prepayment:

The Senior Term Loan is fully prepayable at any time.

Origination Fee:

2.0%

| Security:

The Facilities shall be secured by a perfected first priority security interest in
all of Borrower's existing and future accounts recejvable and accounts
receivable-related items all. securities evidencing ownership interast in
Borrower and its subsidiaries and joint ventures, and all other assets of-
Borrower.

Financial Covenants:

Borrower shall maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0
or a comparable debt service coverage ratio to be agreed upon by Borrower
and Lenders.

Borrower shall have a minimum of $10 million liguidity at close,

Borrower shall maintain a maximum EB{TDAR to lease-adjusted debt ratio
of 5.75x.

Other Terms;

Borrower shall maintain and pay for a depository account {the “Lock Box
Account”) subject to a control agreement satisfactory to Administrative
Agent, into which Borrower’s cash collections shall be remitted.

Administrative Agent shall perform periodic field audits on Borrower’s
boacks and records and collateral-related information.

The prepayment fees refated to the refinancing Borrower’s existing senior
credit facility shall be limited to 1.0%

Loan Documents:

Borrower shall execute and deliver to Administrative Agent such loan and
security agreements, instruments, documents, certificates, and assurances
as are reasonable and customary for similar loans, and as Administrative
Agent may reasonably require in connection with the closing of the Facility.
Such loan document shall provide, among other things, that Lender shall
have the right to assign the Facility in whole or in part, at its discretion.

Administrative Agent shalt receive an opinion from Borrowers counsel
satlsfactory to Administrative Agent.

Please ipitial upon approval
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Facility Costs:

All reasonable costs associated with the Facility, including, but not limited
to Administrative Agent's out-of-pocket expenses associated with the
transaction, professional fees, recording fees, search fees, and filing fees
will be paid by Borrower regardless of whether the transaction closes.
Upen acceptance of the general terms of this letter, Borrower shall remit a
non-refundable $100,000 deposit, which amount shall be applied against
the Facility costs.

Governing Law/Waiver of
Jury Trial;

This term sheet and the loan documents shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland. Each of
the parties hereto waives all right to trial by jury in any action, proceeding
or counterclaim (whether based upon contract, tort or otherwise) related
to or arising out of the Loan or the other transactions contemplated hereby,
or the performance by us or any of our affiliates of the services
contemplated hereby. -

Exclusivity:

Borrower understands that Lenders will invest significant resources into
making financial, legal and collateral investigations and determinations, and
that Lenders will incur opportunity costs in pursuing such investigations and
determinations for this Facility. Accordingly, Borrower agrees that, during
the “Feasibility Period” defined below, Borrower and its principals and
affiliates will (a} not close any loan or extend or refinance any existing
financing for any entity listed herein as Borrower, or sign a term sheet with
or otherwise engage another lender for such purpose, (b} negotiate
exclusively with Lenders regarding any financing, the purpose of which is
substantially the same as that of the proposed Facility, and (c) act in good
faith and with reasonable diligence and dispatch to provide all requested
access, information, and documentation to allow Llenders to pursue
approval of the proposed Facility and closing if the Facility is approved by
Lenders’ credit committee. If Borrower fails to comply with the
requirements of the preceding sentence, then Borrower shall pay to
Lenders, an demand, liquidated damages equal to 1.0% of the Commitment
Amount, such payment to be in addition to any deposit(s) paid to Lenders
and any other reimbursement obligations of the Borrower hereunder. The
"Feasibility Period” means the period commencing as of the date hereof
and continuing until the earlier of {3} the clasing of the Facility, (b} a
determination by Lenders not to pursue such transaction, or {c} 45 days
from the date hereof (which 45-day period will automatically be extended
by 120 days if Lenders obtain, within 45 days, credit committee approval for
the Facility substantially in accordance with the terms described herein).
Borrower agrees that such liquidated damages are a reasonable
approximation of the damages Lenders will sustain by reason of Borrower’s
breach of its agreements in this paragraph. Notwithstanding the foregoing
the Borrower's exclusivity obligations above shall specifically exclude (a)
capital equipment financings; (b) sale-leaseback/lease financings with
REITS; (c} subordinate debt/preferred equity financings with REITS; and {d)
mortgage financing secured by Borrower's Kentfield hospital.

Please initial upon approval
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The terms of the Facility as set forth herein are for discussion purposes only and this term sheet does not
imply in any way a commitment by Administrative Agent to enter into the Facility or to submit the Facility
to Administrative Agent’s credit committee for approval. Administrative Agent may terminate its review of
the Facility at any time in its sole discretion. Administrative Agent will make the loans summarized above
only upon further due diligence and underwriting of the transaction, approval through Administrative
Agent’s credit approval process, Administrative Agent’s continuing satisfaction with the financial and
business conditions of the Borrower and its principals, and receipt of documentation and assurances
satisfactory to Administrative Agent and its legal counsel. This term sheet does not purport to specify all of
the terms, conditions, representations and warranties, covenants and other provisions that will be
contained in the final Financing Documents for the Facility, if approved by Administrative Agent. The
Facility shall be subject to such other terms, covenants and conditions as Administrative Agent deems

appropriate in its sole discretion.

This term sheet is being delivered in reliance that all information provided to Administrative Agent is and
will be accurate and complete. The contents of this term sheet may not be shared with any third party
without Administrative Agent’s prior written consent, except for management and regulatory bodies on a
need-to-know basis. All persons who are informed of the contents of this term sheet also need to be
informed that such contents are confidential and cannot be disclosed without Administrative Agent’s prior

written ¢consent.

Notwithstanding anything else contained herein, Borrower hereby expressly agrees to be bound by the
provisions of this term sheet relating to confidentiality, exclusivity and expense reimbursement.

This term sheet supersedes all previous discussions, communications and proposals relating in any way to
the Facility and shall expire if not executed by Borrower and returned to Administrative Agent by 5:00pm

EST on February 5™, 2012,

MidCap Financial hereby notifies Borrower that pursuant to the requirements of the USA Patriot Act (Titla
Il of Pub. L. 107-56, signed into law October 26, 2001} (the “Act”} and MidCap Financial’s policies and
practices, MidCap Financial is required to obtain, verify and record certain information and documentation
that identifies each Borrower, which information includes the name and address of each Borrower and
such other information that will allow MidCap Financial to identify each Borrower in accordance with the

Act.

if you would like Administrative Agent to continue reviewing your loan request, please evidence your
agreement with the forgoing by accepting this proposal on the space set forth below, and returning it, to
my attention. Please also wire the good faith deposit to the following:

Please initial upon approval _
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Bank Name and Address:

ABA/Routing Number:
Swift Code:
Account Name and Address:

>

CCT:

——l

TTN;

T»
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SunTrust Bank

25 Park Place
Atlanta, GA 30303
061000104
SNTRUS3A

MC SERVICECD LLC
7255 Woodmont Avenue
Suite 200

Bethesda, MD 20814
1000113400443
Vibra Healthcare, LLC

Upon receipt, we will immediately begin due diligence, Administrative Agent's credit process, and legal
documentation. We appreciate the opportunity to furnish this proposal to you. If you have any questions,

please do not hesitate to call.

A\

Very Truly Yours,

Name: Brett Robinson
Title: Managing Director

s

Agreed and accepted this _‘_ day of

e

20

VIBRA HEALTHCARE, LLC
By: d‘/("? 7L kg_q,\
dro

Name:

Title: -

Please initial upon approval —
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QY VIBRA

HEALTHCARE

 May 17,2013

Illinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board
Springfield, IL

RE: Change of Ownership of Kindred
Hospital Springfield and
Change of Control of Greater Peoria
Specialty Hospital

To Whom It May Concern:

The two projects identified above represent the Illinois component of a transaction
involving the acquisition of seventeen hospitals currently owned and/or controlled by Kindred
Healthcare, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Kindred™), by Vibra Healthcare, LLC and its subsidiaries
(“Vibra™). A portion of the transaction will be addressed through the use of debt, as described in
the Applications for Permit. The use of debt is believed by Vibra to be more cost effective than
the liquidation or use of short term investments. . In addition, and following an evaluation of
alternatives, Vibra believes that the proposed financing will result in the lowest net cost available

to Vibra.

Sincerely,

I > Gl

Douglas C. Yohe A
Senior Vice President & General Counsel

Sworn to and subscribed, before me,
this_17™ day of _ May -, 2013.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

' NOTARIAL SEAL
CHRISTY A, RINKER, Notary Public
City of Hamisburg, Dauphin County
My Commission Expires December 22, 2013 ATTACHMENT 42

4550 Lena Drive, Suite 225 o Mechanicsbu?,é’A./l?OSS * 717.591.5700 ¢ Fax 717.591.5710




PROJECTED OPERATING COSTS
' and
TOTAL EFFECT OF THE PROJECT ON CAPITAL COSTS

Vibra Hospital Springfield--2015

Projected Patient Days: 15,515
. \
Operating Costs:
salaries & benefits: $ 5,450,000
medical supplies: $ 1,141,000

$ 6,591,000

|OPERATING COST PER PATIENT DAY: $424.81]

Capital Costs:

depreciation: S 20,000
interest: $ 567,000
amortization: S 21,000
S 608,000

[CAPITAL COST PER PATIENT DAY: $ 39.19]

/22 ATTACHMENT 42




SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

Vibra Hospital Springfield will operate as a safety net provider, as the only long term
acute care hospital (LTACH) in the Springfield area. The hospital will operate with a charity
care policy (see ATTACHMENT 19) designed to address the needs of patients without third

party coverage and the ability to pay for their care. The hospital will also accept Medicare and

Medicaid recipients.

The extent to which Vibra Healthcare’s other hospitals will cross-subsidize safety net
services at the Springfield hospital, or the extent to which the Springfield hospital will cross-

subsidize the safety net services provided at other Vibra hospitals, has not been determined.

ATTACHMENT 43




After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the

attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant/Coapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good
Standing 30
2 | Site Ownership 34
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 35
identified with the % of ownership.
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of
Good Standing Etc. 36
5 | Flood Plain Requirements .
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements
7 | Project and Sources of Funds Itemization 37
8 | Obligation Document if required
9 | Cost Space Requirements
10 | Discontinuation
11 | Background of the Applicant 38
12 | Purpose of the Project 42
13 | Alternatives to the Project 44
14 | Size of the Project
15 | Project Service Utilization
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
18 | Master Design Project
19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions - 46
Service Specific:
20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation
22 | Acute Mental lliness
23 | Neonatal Intensive Care
24 | Open Heart Surgery
25 | Cardiac Catheterization
26 | In-Center Hemodialysis
27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery
28 | General Long Term Care
29 | Specialized Long Term Care
30 | Selected Organ Transplantation
31 | Kidney Transplantation
32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model
| 33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center
34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center
35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital
37 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services
Financial and Economic Feasibility:
39 | Availability of Funds 84
40 | Financial Waiver
41 | Financial Viability 130
42 | Economic Feasibility 131
43 | Safety Net Impact Statement 133
44 | Charity Care Information 29
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